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Balance Sheet Data  
Total Assets 
Gross Loan Portfolio
  Business Loan Portfolio
   EUR < 10,000
   EUR > 10,000 < 30,000
   EUR > 30,000 < 150,000
   EUR > 150,000
  Agricultural Loan Portfolio
  Other
Allowance for Impairment on Loans
Net Loan Portfolio
Liabilities to Customers
Liabilities to Banks and Financial Institutions
Total Equity

Income Statement      
Operating Income
Operating Expenses
Operating Profit Before Tax
Net Profit
 
Key Ratios      
Cost/Income Ratio
ROE
Capital Ratio 

Operational Statistics      
Number of Loans Outstanding
Number of Loans Disbursed within the Year
Number of Business and Agricultural
Loans Outstanding
Number of Deposit Accounts
Number of Staff
Number of Branches and Outlets

Exchange rate as of December 31:

2010: USD 1 = CDF 919.69

2009: USD 1 = CDF 903.56 

This annual report is based on figures compiled in accordance with local GAAP as required by local regulations. For infor-

mation purposes, the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS, which have been approved for use in internal 

group reporting, are provided at the end of this report, starting on page 62.
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Mission Statement

ProCredit Bank Congo is a development-oriented full-service bank. We offer excellent 

customer service and a wide range of banking products. In our credit operations, 

we  focus on lending to very small, small and medium-sized enterprises, as we are 

 convinced that these businesses create the largest number of jobs and make a vital 

contribution to the economies in which they operate.

Unlike other banks, our bank does not promote consumer loans. Instead we focus on 

responsible banking, by building a savings culture and long-term partnerships with our 

customers.

Our shareholders expect a sustainable return on investment, but are not primarily 

 interested in short-term profit maximisation. We invest extensively in the training of our 

staff in order to create an enjoyable and efficient working atmosphere, and to  provide 

the friendliest and most competent service possible for our customers.
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Letter from the Board of Directors

Members of the 

Board of Directors as of 

December 31, 2010:

Sandrine Massiani 

(Chairperson)

Nina Tellegen

Helen Alexander

Monika Beck

Hannah Siedek

Alain Soulard

Franck Wolff

Philip Sigwart

Members of the 

Management Board as of 

December 31, 2010:

Hannah Siedek

Carlos Kalambay Kabangu

Celestin Mukeba Muntuabu

During the year of its 50th anniversary of independence, the DRC also celebrated the writing off of the vast 
majority of its external debt. The country further benefited from large investments in its infrastructure, 
notably from China. Nevertheless, international investors were largely deterred by the unstable regula-
tory environment and corrupt business climate, leaving much of the country’s enormous energy and min-
ing potential untapped. As for the future, the continued postponement of local elections and the prepara-
tions for the next presidential vote will most certainly increase domestic political tensions. 

Although the financial sector in the DRC has been growing steadily, formal banking services remain out 
of reach for most of the population. The demand for accessible, transparent and responsible financial 
services is therefore very high, as demonstrated by ProCredit Bank Congo’s steady growth. In 2010, the 
bank continued to pursue its mission as a financial institution dedicated to serving very small, small and 
medium businesses, as well as private individuals and low-income households. At the same time, we 
drew important lessons from the financial and economic crisis of the last two years, and realigned our 
priorities accordingly. 

First, we renewed our efforts to establish long-term relationships with those very small and small busi-
nesses that are exerting a real development impact on the economy, and we reinforced our commitment 
to responsible banking. In a market that lacks an official credit bureau and where the growing number 
of untransparent financing offers enables borrowers to take out multiple loans, overindebtedness is a 
growing risk. ProCredit Bank Congo therefore adopted an even more rigorous approach to lending, 
which included the discontinuation of extremely small credits. Second, the bank invested significantly 
in enhancing operational processes and adopted an approach that prioritises customers rather than 
products and thereby improves the quality of our services. Third, we expanded our branch network: in 
addition to our 10 fully-fledged branches, ProCredit Bank Congo currently has six small, strategically 
located service points. We are particularly proud of having opened our first branch dedicated to agri-
cultural lending, in Mbanza Ngungu (Bas-Congo). 

The relevance of ProCredit Bank Congo’s strategy is clearly demonstrated by the significant growth that 
we achieved in 2010 in both lending and deposits. Our deposit base swelled to USD 125 million, held by 
more than 160,000 clients; these figures represent increases of 18% and 48%, respectively. On the cred-
it side, the outstanding loan portfolio climbed by more than USD 5 million, bringing the total to USD 39 
million. Due to the economic difficulties experienced by our small business clients, we will be compelled 
to continue to focus on managing portfolio quality. 

These changes and positive developments would not have been possible without the strong commitment 
of our 468 employees. Staff quality and development continue to be our strategic priorities. In addition to 
continued and significant investments in training at the local, regional and group levels, a new central-
ised and transparent staff recruitment policy has been successfully put in place, including a stipend pro-
gramme for young graduates willing to learn and live the values and best practices of a responsible, 
professional and development-oriented financial institution. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to take this opportunity to thank the management team 
and the entire staff for their strong commitment and dedication this year. I would also like to thank our 
technical assistance partners and shareholders for their continued support to the institution. ProCredit 
Bank Congo has all of the ingredients for successful and sustainable development: robust foundations 
and a clear vision of its role as a responsible and professional financial institution that will work for the 
benefit of our valued business clients and private customers in the years to come.

 Sandrine Massiani
 Chairperson of the Board of Directors
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ProCredit Holding is the 
 parent company of a global 
 group of 21 ProCredit banks. 

ProCredit Holding was founded as Internationale 
Micro Investitionen AG (IMI) in 1998 by the pio-
neering development finance consultancy com-
pany IPC.

ProCredit Holding is committed to expanding ac-
cess to financial services in developing countries 
and transition economies by building a group of 
banks that are the leading providers of fair, trans-
parent financial services for very small, small 
and medium-sized businesses as well as the gen-
eral population in their countries of operation. In 
addition to meeting the equity needs of its sub-
sidiaries, ProCredit Holding guides the develop-
ment of the ProCredit banks, provides their sen-
ior management, and supports the banks in all 
key areas of activity, including banking opera-
tions, human resources and risk management. It 
ensures that ProCredit corporate values, interna-
tional best practice procedures and Basel II risk 
management principles are implemented group-

wide in line with standards also set by the German 
supervisory authorities.

IPC is the leading shareholder and strategic in-
vestor in ProCredit Holding. IPC has been the driv-
ing entrepreneurial force behind the ProCredit 
group since the foundation of the banks.

ProCredit Holding is a public-private partnership. 
In addition to IPC and IPC Invest (the investment 
vehicle of the staff of IPC and ProCredit), the 
 other private shareholders of ProCredit Holding 
include the Dutch DOEN Foundation, the US 
 pension fund TIAA-CREF, the US Omidyar-Tufts 
Microfinance Fund and the Swiss investment 
fund responsAbility. The public shareholders of 
ProCredit Holding include KfW (the German pro-
motional bank), IFC (the private sector arm of the 
World Bank), FMO (the Dutch development bank), 
BIO (the Belgian Investment Company for De-
veloping Countries) and Proparco (the French 
Investment and Promotions company for Economic 
Cooperation).

The Bank and its Shareholders 

ProCredit Bank Congo is a member of the ProCredit 
group, which is led by its Frankfurt-based parent 
company, ProCredit Holding. ProCredit Holding is 
the majority owner of ProCredit Bank Congo and 
holds 65% of the shares.

ProCredit Bank Congo was founded in August 
2004 by an alliance of international development-
oriented investors, many of which are sharehold-
ers in ProCredit Holding today. Their goal was to 
establish a new kind of financial  institution that 
would meet the demand of small and very small 
businesses in a socially responsible way. The pri-
mary aim was not short-term profit maximisation 
but rather to deepen the financial sector and con-

tribute to long-term economic development while 
also achieving a sustainable return on investment.

Over the years, ProCredit Holding has consoli-
dated the ownership and management structure 
of all the ProCredit banks to create a truly global 
group with a clear shareholder structure and to 
bring to each ProCredit institution all the best 
practice standards, synergies and benefits that 
this implies.

Today’s shareholder structure of ProCredit Bank 
Congo is outlined below. Its current share capital 
is USD 16 million.

Sector

Investment
Investment
Banking
Investment
Investment

Shareholder
(as of Dec. 31, 2010) 
ProCredit Holding
DOEN
KfW
IFC
BIO
Others

Total Capital

Headquarters

Germany
Netherlands
Germany
USA
Belgium

Share

65%
12%

9%
8%
6%

<1%

100%

Paid-in Capital
(in USD)

10,479,910
1,920,000
1,440,000
1,200,000

960,000
90

16,000,000
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ProCredit Holding has an investment grade rating 
(BBB-) from Fitch Ratings Agency. As of the end of 
2010, the equity base of the ProCredit group is 
EUR 428 million. The total assets of the ProCredit 
group are EUR 5.2 billion.
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Stichting DOEN, or the DOEN 
Foundation, was set up in 

1991 by the Dutch Postcode Lottery. The DOEN 
Foundation’s ambition is to help build a sustain-
able world in which everyone can make a contri-
bution. DOEN is looking for sustainable, cultural 
and socially-minded pioneers who will make a 
positive contribution to the following develop-
ments: cultivating positive effects on Climate 
Change, cultivating Culture and Cohesion and 
promoting New Economy. The DOEN Foundation 
funds initiatives from annual contributions re-
ceived under long term contracts from its found-
er, the Dutch Postcode Lottery, and the two other 
Dutch charity lotteries, the BankGiro lottery and 
the Friends Lottery.

The DOEN Foundation has been financing entre-
preneurial and sustainable initiatives that im-
prove access to a responsible financial sector 
since 1994. The DOEN foundation considers ac-
cess to finance an important tool for sustainable 
development and for building civil society.

IFC, a member of the 
World Bank Group, is 

the largest global development institution focused 
on the private sector in developing countries. We 
create opportunity for people to escape poverty 
and improve their lives. We do so by providing fi-
nancing to help businesses employ more people 
and supply essential services, by mobilizing cap-
ital from others, and by delivering advisory serv-
ices to ensure sustainable development. In a time 
of global economic uncertainty, our new invest-
ments climbed to a record $18 billion in fiscal 
2010. For more information, visit www.ifc.org.

The Belgian Investment Com-
pany for Developing Countries 

(BIO) is a Development Finance Institution (DFI) 
established in 2001 in the framework of the 
Belgian Development Cooperation to support 
 private sector growth in developing and emerg-
ing countries.

BIO finances the financial sector, enterprises and 
private infrastructure projects. Endowed with 
capital of EUR 465 million, BIO provides tailored 
long-term financial products (equity, quasi- equity, 
debt and guarantees) and finances technical as-
sistance programmes and feasibility studies. 
BIO also encourages its business partners to im-
plement environmental, social and  governance 
standards. 

BIO operates as an additional partner to the 
 traditional financial institutions and looks for 
projects with a balance between return on 
 investment and development impact. BIO is a 
member of EDFI (European Development Finance 
Institutions).

Website: www.bio-invest.be
E-mail: info@bio-invest.be 

KfW Entwicklungsbank (KfW 
Development Bank): On be -

half of the German Federal Government, KfW 
 Ent wicklungs bank finances investments and ac-
companying advisory services in developing and 
transition countries. Its aim is to build up and 
 expand the social and economic infrastructure of 
the respective countries, and to advance sound 
financial systems while protecting resources and 
ensuring a healthy environment.

KfW Entwicklungsbank is a leader in supporting 
responsible and sustainable microfinance and is 
involved in target group-oriented financial insti-
tutions around the world. It is part of KfW, which 
has a balance sheet total of EUR 442 billion (as 
of  December 31, 2010). KfW is one of the five 
 biggest banks in Germany and is AAA-rated by 
Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings.
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Special Feature

ProCredit Bank Congo marked its fifth anniversa-
ry with a large celebration in Kinshasa attended 
by all ProCredit staff in DR Congo and hundreds 
of loyal customers. When the bank opened its 
first branch in Gombe in 2005, the banking sec-
tor was very exclusive, primarily serving large 
companies or wealthy private individuals. High 
account maintenance fees, minimum deposits 
and required references prevented the majority 
of the Congolese population from using formal 
financial services. 

To open an account at ProCredit Bank Congo, how-
ever, one merely needed an ID card. The process 
was simple, transparent and open to everybody. 
Even without conducting formal marketing activi-
ties, the bank soon had hundreds of customers: 
its excellent financial services and friendly staff 

appealed to the formerly excluded population. 
Following our example, other institutions were 
quick to realise that there was a market for this 
underserved segment, and this has led to an 
overall deepening of the banking sector. Despite 
the increased competition, ProCredit Bank’s cus-
tomers have remained loyal and continue to val-
ue our high quality products and services. In ad-
dition, they appreciate the fact that everyone 
receives the same courteous customer service at 
ProCredit Bank.

Indeed, our staff continue to be the key to our 
success: as we have done from the very begin-
ning, we focus on recruiting young, motivated 
university graduates. Our hardworking employ-
ees’ ideas and input keep us ahead of the compe-
tition.  At the end of 2010, ProCredit Bank Congo 

ProCredit Bank Congo Celebrates Its 5th Anniversary 
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had 470 staff members, 25 of whom have been 
with us since the first day. 

We did not travel the road to success on our own, 
however: as part of the ProCredit group, we have 
learned from the other banks’ experiences and 
successes. Therefore, we have not had to rein-
vent the wheel. In addition, staff exchanges and 
frequent contact with other banks in the group 
have proven invaluable. This synergy has ena-
bled us to grow steadily and sustainably. 

Last but certainly not least, we could not survive 
without our clients. By the end of 2010, 70,380 
new accounts had been opened and the bank 
boasted a deposit volume of USD 122,481,738. 
In a financial sector where many individuals have 
had bad experiences with banks, we are grateful 
for the confidence and trust our clients have in 
ProCredit Bank Congo. 

The coming years will bring some important 
changes: we are poised to expand from Kinshasa 
into the regions. We also hope to enhance our cus-
tomer service, launch new products, and improve 
distribution channels. In addition, we are well on 
the way to positioning ourselves as the “house 
bank” for very small and small businesses.
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Management Business Review

Management 

from left to right: 

Celestin Mukeba Muntuabu

Deputy General Manager

Hannah Siedek

General Manager

Carlos Kalambay Kabangu

Deputy General Manager
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Political and Economic Environment

Despite substantial debt relief, slight improve-
ments in the security situation, and some progress 
in infrastructure in 2010, the Congolese economy 
is still weak and volatile. The persisting violence in 
the eastern part of the country, massive corrup-
tion and human rights violations continue to deter 
investors. On the political front, the numerous 
government speeches calling for constitutional 
changes created a climate of uncertainty just as 
the DRC was starting to enjoy an era of relatively 
consensual politics after decades of autocracy. 

The massive pan-African war for control of the 
mineral-rich district of Ituri and the province of 
Kivu has virtually destroyed an entire generation 
in the east. This armed conflict, the most deadly 
since World War II, has thus far cost the lives 
of  more than five million people. Meanwhile, 
President Kabila’s notorious “five chantiers” 
(large-scale infrastructure projects), which are 
supposed to modernise the country, have been 
slow to materialise. Violence continues to plague 
the north and east; rebel groups briefly took over 
the capital of Equateur province in April 2010 and 
were expelled only with the help of UN soldiers. 
In addition, observers have interpreted the as-
sassinations in June and October of human rights 
activists Floribert Chebeya and Armand Tungulu, 
allegedly by Kinshasa police forces, as a sign 
that civil society and freedom of speech are com-
ing under increasing pressure. Traditional end-
of-year political debates centred on a probable 
revision of the constitution engineered to favour 
the re-election of President Kabila.

Despite this unstable situation, the country 
showed some signs of recovery in 2010. In time 
to celebrate the country’s 50th year of independ-
ence, the Paris Club agreed to write off USD 7.35 
billion of the DRC’s external public debt, greatly 
reducing the enormous service payments. The 
IMF also promised a USD 550 million loan if pov-
erty alleviation programmes were maintained. 
Chinese companies continue to invest signifi-
cantly in the DRC’s infrastructure, with emphasis 
on resurfacing important roads in Kinshasa, 
Goma and Lubumbashi. In fact, China is now a 
major economic partner, receiving around 50% of 
the country’s exports1.

Economic results in the DRC were mixed in 2010: 
growing current account and fiscal deficits re-
sulted in moderate GDP growth of 6.1% (2009: 
2.8%), while inflation stood at 9.8%, much high-
er than in neighbouring countries (although 
much lower than the 53.4% recorded in 2009). 
The exchange rate with the US dollar remained 
stable, at around CDF 900, thanks to increased 
agricultural production, a high level of foreign di-
rect investment and debt relief. Fortunately, the 
DRC was relatively immune to the financial crisis 
due to its economic isolation. 

Much remains to be done before Congolese can 
hope for a better future. The World Bank’s “Doing 
Business Report” ranked the DRC 179th out of 
183 countries, while Transparency International 
ranked it 164th out of 178 in its “Corruption 
Perceptions Index 2010” (compared to 162nd 
place in 2009). However, the country’s vast po-
tential is obvious: if managed effectively, the 
Inga dam has enough capacity to provide power 
to the whole continent, and mineral resources are 
estimated to be worth USD 24 billion. In addition, 
the growing local business community as well as 
the highly educated diaspora are eager for 
change and ready to invest in their own country. 

Financial Sector Developments2 

Relative to its geographic size, which is roughly 
equivalent to that of Western Europe, and its 
population of 67 million, the DRC has a very low 
level of financial intermediation. However, there 
has been an influx of new banks and other finan-
cial institutions over the past three years. At the 
end of 2010 the total number of commercial banks 
had nearly doubled to 23 banks, compared to 
just 13 in 2007. Nevertheless, bank penetration 
is still below 1%, with the number of customer ac-
counts estimated at a mere 650,000. 

At year-end, the total assets of the formal bank-
ing sector3 stood at USD 2.3 billion (2009: USD 

1  Source: Economist Intelligence Unit, Country report on DR 
Congo, December 2010.

2   Data for this section are based on the published financial 
statements of each institution in the DRC.

3  Excluding Banque Congolaise (in liquidation).
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1.9 billion). Meanwhile, total deposits climbed to 
USD 1.5 billion (2009: USD 1.3 billion) and the 
loan portfolio increased to USD 864 million 
(2009: USD 816 million). 

On the regulatory side, there were no significant 
changes in 2010. The new minimum capital re-
quirement for banks, communicated by the cen-
tral bank in 2009, took effect in January 2010 
(USD 10 million, up from USD 5 million). Most 
commercial banks in the DRC target corporations 
and large institutions. Though very small, small 
and medium-sized businesses continue to domi-
nate the economy, supplying the local market 
with various commodities, basic consumer goods 
and food, they remain severely underserved with 
respect to credit. The SME sector is expanding, 
and therefore its financing needs are also in-
creasing. Formal banks are reluctant to address 
this potential market (as well as very small busi-
nesses), however, mainly due to its informality 
and lack of solid guarantees. In addition, the vast 
majority of small agricultural businesses have no 
access to the financial sector at all, despite the 
more than 120 savings and credit co-operatives 
and 19 microfinance institutions that operate pri-
marily in the countryside.

A few international banks have timidly entered 
the market in the micro and SME segments, nota-
bly Advans Bank, which went into operation in 
the DRC in 2009, and Opportunity Bank, which is 
in the process of opening and plans to lend to the 
same sub-sector. Trust Merchant Bank (TMB) and 
Banque Internationale pour l’Afrique au Congo 
(BIAC) have increased their activities with SMEs. 
FINCA (not yet a bank, but nevertheless a key 
player in microfinance), which initially focused 
its lending activities on groups and individuals at 
the lower end of the microfinance market, is in-
creasingly targeting small businesses.

ProCredit Performance

Due to irresponsible institutions that have gone 
bankrupt, burying with them their clients’ depos-
its, banks generally have a bad name in the eyes 
of ordinary Congolese. This perception only wors-
ened in the aftermath of the world financial cri-
sis, and the central bank’s takeover of Banque 
Congolaise in 2010 after severe liquidity prob-

lems further eroded public confidence in the 
banking sector. 

In this climate of renewed wariness towards 
banks, ProCredit Bank Congo’s commitment to 
responsible banking and rigorous efforts to pre-
vent over-indebtedness both reinforced custom-
er loyalty and drew new clients. Offering conven-
ient lending, transaction and savings services to 
very small, small and medium-sized businesses 
around the country, the bank also maintained its 
image as an accessible, reliable bank for lower 
and middle-income private individuals. In addi-
tion to offering simple and transparent financial 
products, the bank continued to promote finan-
cial literacy and education among its clients.

ProCredit’s well-trained staff work closely with 
clients, conveying to them the benefits of bank-
ing with us as well as the advantages of formalis-
ing their finances. We also communicate the 
bank’s development mission and explain our 
pricing schemes. The bank’s very comfortable li-
quidity situation in 2010 allowed us to continue 
extending loans and to enlarge our business with 
small and medium clients.

On the institutional level, we re-organised our de-
partments according to the type of client or busi-
ness, advising customers according to their spe-
cific requirements. This client-oriented approach 
proved to be successful, as evidenced by the rise 
in deposits and in the use of related banking serv-
ices. ProCredit in fact holds 35% of the total 
number of bank accounts nationwide. In 2010 de-
posits grew by 17.6% in volume (47.9% in number), 
and clients increasingly used the bank’s various 
services, including cheque payments (which in-
creased by 16.9% in number), transfers (which in-
creased by 15.4% in number), ATM withdrawals 
(which increased by 105.8% in number) and POS 
terminal payments (which increased by 12.2% in 
volume, but remained stable in number). We also 
made a substantial contribution to economic 
growth by financing businesses, disbursing USD 
51.4 million in loans, an increase of 5% over 2009.

Lending

After just five years, ProCredit Bank Congo has 
become very adept at helping entrepreneurs grow 
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and formalise their businesses. The gross loan 
portfolio grew by 16.7%, to USD 39.3 million 
(2009: USD 33.9 million), and the bank disbursed 
around 7,700 loans. With additional resources 
channelled into SME lending, the average loan 
size increased from USD 3,964 in 2009 to USD 
6,691 at the end of 2010. 

With respect to the different sub-segments of 
the portfolio, performance varied: while the Very 

Small (up to USD 30,000) and Small (from USD 
30,000 up to USD 100,000) segments remained 
relatively stable, our Medium outstanding port-
folio doubled, to USD 10.4 million. Although this 
growth showed that ProCredit Bank is becoming 
a very appealing financial partner for entrepre-
neurs with much larger projects than our usual 
target group, not all of the projects to be financed 
in this segment are in line with our development 
mission. We therefore took a selective approach 
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< USD 1,000 USD 30,001 – USD 150,000        
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to Medium lending, focusing on projects with a 
human development impact (schools, hospitals, 
etc.) or medium businesses with a very high po-
tential for job creation. 

The slow pace of growth in the Very Small and 
Small segments in 2010 was mainly due to com-
petition in certain markets, increased credit risk 
and challenging legal processes, which necessi-
tated the introduction of stricter internal policies 
and the reinforcement of certain operational teams 
(i.e. recruitment and training). 

At the same time, with more microfinance insti-
tutions operating at the lower end of the market, 
signs of multiple lending led us to cease issuing 
loans below USD 1,000. While this decision 
made perfect sense in terms of credit risk man-
agement, it also meant withdrawing from an en-
tire market segment. To compensate for the scal-
ing back of operations at the lowest end of the 
market, we  implemented a training programme 
aimed at increasing our acquisition capacity in 
the higher loan segments.

Our core business still lies in the Very Small 
 segment (from USD 1,000-USD 30,000), which 
accounted for 56% of our disbursements in 2010. 
In this segment, the outstanding portfolio de-
creased slightly, amounting to USD 21.1 million 
and 8,798 loans at year-end. 

Due to competition, the volume of our Small 
 business increased only modestly, from USD 6.4 
 million to USD 6.5 million year-on-year. In this 
 segment, other banks tend to freely issue collat-
eral-based loans with relatively short maturities, 
as well as overdrafts, without taking payment ca-
pacity into account. Observing that over-indebt-
edness was mushrooming among these clients, 
ProCredit Bank took the responsible step of im-
posing stricter loan requirements, which in turn 
led to a higher rejection rate. 

2010 saw the opening of five new branches and 
service points, bringing the total number of units 
in the network to 16. In Kinshasa, new branches 
were opened in Matadi Kibala and Matete, while 
service points were established in the Binza-UPN 
(Université Pédagogique Nationale) and Limete 
districts. The bank is proudest, however, of open-
ing the country’s very first bank branch fully ded-
icated to agricultural lending, in Mbanza Ngungu. 
Agriculture represents 37.4% of the country’s 
economy and yet is tremendously underserved. 
Our agricultural loan portfolio is still small, but 
we plan to expand our team of agricultural client 
advisers and increase our outreach in this sector. 

There are various reasons for the increase of the 
overall portfolio at risk over 30 days to 5.43% 
from 3.41% in 2009, including poor information-
sharing between Congolese financial institutions 
(the country still has no credit reference bureau); 
irresponsible, poorly analysed loans disbursed 
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by certain banks; the poaching of some of our ex-
perienced lending staff by other institutions; and 
a slowdown in business activities in some sec-
tors. Accordingly, the unit in charge of portfolio 
quality was upgraded to a full department, with 
the aim of supporting the branches in credit risk 
management and recovery. Refresher trainings 
on loan analysis procedures were also conducted 
to improve our officers’ skills. 

Provisions remained at a prudent level, covering 
115.4% of PAR above 30 days and 6.15% of the 

outstanding loan portfolio. Net write-offs amount-
ed to 3.56% of our year-end portfolio.

Deposits and Other Banking Services

As the first bank to open its banking halls to ordi-
nary people, and with simple products and trans-
parent pricing, ProCredit Bank Congo’s deposit 
products and other banking services have been 
very popular from the start. The bank’s excellent 
reputation in the market continues to be reflected 
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in our results. In 2010, total customer funds grew 
to USD 124.9 million, a 17% increase over 2009. 
In numbers, total accounts stood at 161,500 
(2009: 109,000), an increase of nearly 50%. The 
deposit-to-loan ratio stood at 318.5% at year-end 
(vs. 313.0% in 2009), reflecting our typically very 
comfortable liquidity situation. 

The vast majority of our depositors are ordinary 
people: the number of accounts with a balance 
up to USD 100 represented 71.5% of total depos-
its (2009: 66.3%).

Despite the relatively stable macroeconomic en-
vironment in 2010, our customers’ choices of de-
posit categories continue to reflect a strong pref-
erence for ready availability of funds, with current 
accounts representing 46.9% (2009: 51.5%) of 
the total deposit volume and savings accounts 
making up 47.5% (2009: 43.4%). The rest of the 
volume is held in term deposits, mainly with ma-
turities below six months.

The most frequently used other products are pay-
ment products, i.e. transfers and cheques. We 
carried out nearly 43,000 transfers (15.4% more 
than in 2009) with a combined volume of USD 
278 million in 2010. Domestic transactions rep-
resented 35.5% of the total number and 32.1% of 
the volume.

The bank made a strong effort to promote the 
 secure and simple technologies it uses to make 

transactions more convenient for clients. Cards 
proved to be especially popular because they al-
low customers to make withdrawals at ATMs and 
purchase things in shops. ProCredit Bank was 
the first bank to introduce ATMs and POS termi-
nals to the market, and with a network of 19 ATMs 
and more than 300 POS terminals installed in 
shops and supermarkets, we are the leader in 
both categories. Nearly twice as many withdraw-
als as last year were made on ATMs, reaching 
nearly 1. 3 million transactions in total. Around 
72,000 card payments were processed through 
our POS terminals, similar to 2009’s figures. Our 
staff at the branches also promoted the use of 
cards as a safe and convenient alternative to 
cash. Because most of our clients do not trust 
machines, they regularly come to our banking 
halls for transactions that they could carry out 
themselves, resulting in long queues during peak 
days of the month. Half of the cash desk transac-
tions in our branches are withdrawals, and the 
vast majority of those are below USD 1,000. Our 
card promotions always include demonstrations 
on how to use cards at ATMs and POS terminals, 
with the objective of convincing clients to try our 
payment technologies, gain confidence in them, 
and save time. Our local debit cards and VISA cards 
have been very successful for years. This year we 
also introduced MasterCard, thus diversifying 
our product range. 

Although e-banking services have been available 
to our clients for some time, internet access from 
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home or the workplace is still not common among 
our clients or in the country as a whole. Therefore, 
at the end of 2010 we began to develop straight-
forward mobile phone banking services, which 
will be launched in early 2011. This product will 
enable clients to access their account balance and 
last few transactions as well as to make transfers 
from their mobile phones around the clock.

Financial Results

ProCredit Bank Congo’s financial results were 
generally favourable in 2010. Our total assets in-
creased by 22.8% to USD 147 million. 

This growth was driven primarily by a 50.4% rise 
in investment securities, to USD 17.8 million, 
and a 15.6% increase in the loan portfolio, bring-
ing the total to USD 39.3 million. The bank’s li-
quidity reserves remained excellent. In line with 
the bank’s development mission, lending activi-
ties were focused on very small, small and medi-
um-sized enterprises, including agricultural loans, 
which grew by 19.1% over the previous year. The 
106% increase in outstanding medium-sized ex-
posures was the largest contributor to loan port-
folio growth. 

However, the total volume of loans in arrears 
above 30 days increased from 3.40% to 5.43% of 
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the total loan portfolio. This resulted in a 91.6% 
rise in loan loss provisions, bringing the figure to 
USD 2.4 million. Part of the increase was also 
due to changes in the central bank’s provisioning 
rules and to the growth of the bank’s loan portfo-
lio. Capacity at the head office and in the branch-
es was also reinforced in order to address portfo-
lio quality management issues. 

The bank maintained an excellent liquidity posi-
tion throughout the year, with the ratio of liquid 
assets to total assets at 50.7% at year-end. Excess 
liquidity was mostly invested in sovereign bonds 
and placements with correspondent banks.

This asset growth was supported by an increase in 
customer deposits (17.6%). Our primary goal was 
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to attract local currency deposits, which grew by 
247.8%, and term deposits in general, which grew 
by 24.6% year-on-year. The bank’s total deposits 
of USD 125.8 million mainly derive from savings 
accounts (47.5%) and current accounts (46.9%). 
Customer deposits remained the nearly exclusive 
source of funding, supplemented by interbank 
placements and short-term local currency financ-
ing. The total deposit volume was over three times 
as large as the outstanding loan portfolio.

Net interest income amounted to USD 12.4 million 
and represented growth of 19.6% over the previ-
ous year, in line with the increase in the average 
loan portfolio. Net interest income constituted 
86.3% of total operating income, with lending 
 activities generating 91.2% of interest income. 
Interest expenses grew by 66.9%, largely due to 
very high interest rates for local currency term de-
posits and inter-bank finance, reflecting sharp 
hikes in the central bank’s reference rates during 
most of the year.

Net fee and commission income rose by 26.4% to 
USD 3.7 million, despite the fact that most fees 
charged to clients (for account maintenance, 
transactions and products) were well below mar-
ket rates and kept at an affordable level for our 
target group. 

Due to the expansion of our branch network and 
the hiring of 96 new employees, our operating ex-
penses increased by 23.4% to USD 13.6  million. 
This resulted in a cost-income ratio of 80.5%, 
slightly higher than the projected 79.6%. The 
strongest cost drivers in 2010 were depreciation 
charges, office rent and security expenses. The 
bank closed the year with a loss of USD 472,657, 
recovering from the previous year’s net loss of 
USD 1.6 million as calculated by local GAAP re-
quirements. The return on equity was –2.94%.4 

In June 2010, the bank’s shareholders subscribed 
for an additional USD 6 million in new shares in 
order to help the bank to comply with central bank 
regulations regarding the amount of property, 
plant and equipment held relative to regulatory 
capital. The bank’s capital adequacy ratio (Tier 1 
and 2 capital as a proportion of risk-weighted as-
sets) thus stood at 22.9% at year-end, safely 
above the required level of 10%.

Outlook

The macroeconomic environment in the DRC is 
expected to remain stable in 2011, at least for the 
first half of the year; the presidential elections in 
the last quarter could give rise to unrest. 

The number of actors in the financial sector will 
continue to grow. However, given the slow pace 
at which banks are extending services to ordi-
nary people and small businesses, the immense 
potential of the market, and the still very high 
proportion of the population who have no access 
to financial services, supply will continue to lag 
far behind demand. To help fill this gap, ProCredit 
will strive to reach a greater number of small 
businesses in various districts of Kinshasa and 
in the regions. 

The past year was marked by the bank’s success-
ful shift to a client-oriented approach as well as 
by significant expansion of its branch network. In 
2011, the bank plans to open new branches out-
side Kinshasa, notably a second branch in Matadi 
in the harbour, and a branch in Lubumbashi in 
the Katanga province in the first quarter. With 
more branches in the regions, we will greatly im-
prove the outreach of our services to farmers, 
producers and agricultural processors, thereby 
reinforcing our development impact.

At the same time, we will continue to make our 
services even more accessible to and convenient 
for our clients by opening more service points, 
installing additional ATMs, increasing our inter-
net banking options, and launching mobile phone 
banking facilities.

ProCredit Bank Congo also intends to expand its 
services to the SME sector by introducing finan-
cial literacy and business management seminars 
that are tailored to our clients’ specific require-
ments and carried out in collaboration with repu-
table training providers. In this way, we plan to 
enhance our role as a long-term partner for busi-
nesses in the DRC.

4  It should be noted that if our financial statements had been 
calculated according to IFRS, the bank would have been 
able to report a profit of USD 849,657.
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Risk Management

In 2010, banking operations were still very strong-
ly influenced by the financial crisis. At the same 
time, however, this situation has created oppor-
tunities for a bank that has consistently taken a 
rigorous approach to risk management. We be-
lieve that this has been one of the key factors 
 behind ProCredit Bank’s success in retaining the 
trust of our customers.

While ultimate responsibility for risk manage-
ment lies with the Management Board, it is the 
Risk Management Department and Credit Risk 
Department which develop and implement mech-
anisms to identify, assess, and mitigate the 
bank’s exposure to risk. Internal Audit assesses 
risks associated with processes, compliance 
with policies and procedures and the effective-
ness of the internal control system, while the 
AML Unit monitors the bank’s vulnerability to at-
tempted money laundering. These units report to 
the various committees which are responsible for 
decision-making in connection with risk. The 
Credit Risk Committee closely monitors loan 
portfolio quality, the Assets and Liabilities 
Committee (ALCO) manages the short- and long-
term liquidity position and market risk, and the 
Risk Committee monitors operational risks and 
proposes measures to mitigate them.

The risk management policies in effect at ProCredit 
Bank Congo are based on the Group Handbook on 
Risk Management and Control, which in turn is 
based on the German Federal Financial Super-
visory Authority’s policy document “Minimum 
Requirements for Risk Manage ment”. ProCredit 
Bank Congo reports its risk position to the Group 
Risk Management Committee (GRMC) at monthly 
intervals. The group’s risk management depart-
ments also monitor the bank’s key risk indica-
tors on an ongoing basis, providing guidance 
whenever required. 

Risk management policies throughout the 
ProCredit group are based on the concept of 
“risk-bearing capacity”, i.e. the principle that 
each bank’s aggregated risk exposures must not 
exceed its capacity to bear risk, and that the re-
sources available to cover risk are sufficient to 
absorb any losses that may arise and protect 
creditors’ investments. Statistical models and 
other procedures are used to quantify the risks 
incurred, and thresholds and limits are set for 

each risk category and for the aggregate expo-
sure. Throughout 2010 the level of risk remained 
well within the limit in nearly every category.

ProCredit Bank’s culture of internal and external 
transparency is crucial to our risk management 
efforts. Thanks to our clearly defined procedures 
and our encouragement of open communica-
tion, our well-trained staff are in a strong  position 
to detect risks and take the steps necessary to 
mitigate them.

Credit Risk Management

Given that lending to small businesses is ProCredit 
Bank’s main asset-side operation, it is not surpris-
ing that classical credit risk, i.e. the risk that bor-
rowers will be unable to repay, accounts for the 
largest share of risk in this category.

ProCredit Bank Congo has adopted the ProCredit 
Group Credit Risk Management Policy and the 
Group Collateral Valuation Policy, which together 
reflect the experience gained in more than two 
decades of successful lending operations in de-
veloping and transition economies. Credit deci-
sion-making authority at the bank is clearly de-
fined; all decisions to issue a loan, or change its 
terms, are taken by a credit committee, and all 
credit risk assessments are carefully document-
ed. Above all, the bank seeks to build and main-
tain long-term relationships with its customers, 
thus ensuring that it is fully aware of their finan-
cial situation, and great care is taken to avoid 
over-indebting them. 

Credit risk is also mitigated by the fact that our 
portfolio is highly diversified. The businesses we 
serve operate in a wide range of sectors, and their 
exposure to global market fluctuations is very lim-
ited. Moreover, the vast majority of our credit ex-
posures are relatively small. As of end-2010, loans 
under USD 30,000 accounted for 53.36% of the to-
tal outstanding portfolio in terms of volume and 
96.62% in terms of number. The average amount 
outstanding at year-end was approximately USD 
5,000, while the ten largest exposures accounted 
for only 15.54% of the gross portfolio.

As the vast majority of the bank’s loans are re-
payable in monthly instalments, a borrower’s 
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failure to meet a payment deadline is treated as 
an initial sign of potential default and draws an 
immediate response from the bank. When a pay-
ment of interest or principal is overdue by more 
than 30 days, the loan in question is assigned to 
the portfolio at risk (PAR>30), which serves as the 
key indicator of classical credit risk. 

In 2010 the bank’s overall PAR>30 climbed from 
4.29% at the beginning of the year to 4.67% of 
the gross loan portfolio as of year-end. This high 
level was largely attributable to the economic 
 recession, but also due to a legal environment 
which makes it difficult for banks to sell collater-
al or enforce mortgages. Another major cause of 
arrears was the overindebtedness of some of our 
clients, coupled with the inexperience of our loan 
officers in handling arrears cases.

One of the ways in which ProCredit Bank has met 
the challenge to portfolio quality posed by the fi-
nancial crisis is to offer loan restructuring to 
those clients that are judged to have the poten-
tial to regain stability. Restructurings follow a 
thorough analysis of each client’s changed pay-
ment capacity. The decision to restructure a cred-
it exposure is always taken by a credit committee 
and aims at full recovery. As of end-2010, the to-
tal volume of restructured loans in the “watch” 
category came to USD 117,715, with USD 479,716 
migrating to the “impaired” category. 

ProCredit Bank Congo takes a conservative ap-
proach to loan loss provisioning. Impairment 
 allowances for individually significant expo-
sures are calculated on the basis of historical de-
fault rates. For all unimpaired credit exposures, 
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 portfolio-based allowances for impairment are 
made. At the end of the year the coverage ratio 
(loan loss provisions as a percentage of PAR>30) 
stood at 96.63%, with provisions accounting for 
6.24% of the total loan portfolio.

Loans considered to be irrecoverable are consist-
ently written off. Nonetheless, recovery efforts 
continue even after a loan has been written off, 
and collateral collection is rigorously enforced. In 
2010 net write-offs totalled just over USD 1.9 mil-
lion, or 5.15% of the gross loan portfolio.

Counterparty and Issuer Risk 
 Management

Counterparty and issuer risks evolve especially 
from the bank’s need to invest excess liquidity, to 
conclude foreign exchange transactions, or to 
buy protection on specific risk positions. 

The risk of incurring losses caused by the unwill-
ingness or inability of a financial counterparty or 
issuer to fulfil its obligations is managed accord-
ing to the ProCredit Group Counterparty Risk 
Management Policy, which defines the counter-
party selection process and limits on the size of 
exposures, and according to the Group Treasury 
Policy, which specifies the set of permissible 
transactions and the rules for their processing. 
As a matter of principle, only large international 
banks and local banks with a good reputation 
and financial standing are eligible counterpar-
ties. Exceptions to size limits are conditional on 
approval by the GRMC.

Country Risk Management

Given ProCredit Bank’s focus on lending to busi-
nesses in the local market, it does not normally 
enter into cross-border transactions, and therefore 
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its exposure to country risk is limited. However, 
the bank sometimes needs to invest  excess li-
quidity in bonds issued by highly rated interna-
tional institutions, and exchanges currencies 
with other members of the ProCredit group. The 
group as a whole is exposed to country risk inso-
far as all ProCredit banks operate in transition 
economies or developing countries. However, over 
the years the ProCredit business model has prov-
en to be relatively resistant to macroeconomic 
and political shocks.

Liquidity Risk Management

To determine the robustness of the bank’s liquid-
ity in the face of potential shocks, the bank per-
forms regular stress tests based on scenarios de-
fined as a group standard by the Group Liquidity 
Risk Management Policy. Whenever necessary to 
bridge liquidity shortages, ProCredit Bank Congo, 

like the other group banks, is able to obtain a 
standby line from ProCredit Holding. 

Several factors inherent to the bank’s business 
model offset liquidity risk. Firstly, the bank’s di-
versified, high quality portfolio of loans means 
that incoming cash flows are highly predictable. 
Secondly, our customer deposits are spread 
across a large number of depositors each hold-
ing relatively small amounts. As of end-2010 
the  average balance in our accounts was USD 
759, and the ten largest customer deposits tak-
en together represented only 7% of total depos-
its, which is well below the bank’s maximum 
limit of 20%. The average balance in the bank’s 
term deposit  accounts was USD 5,308. The bank 
enjoys sufficient liquidity and has not needed 
external support.

Currency Risk Management

ProCredit Bank Congo has a low level of exposure 
to market risk because it does not trade in securi-
ties or in commodities, nor does it engage in de-
rivative transactions except for hedging purposes. 
Currency risk is managed in accordance with the 
Group Foreign Currency Risk Management Policy. 

The bank continuously monitors exchange rate 
movements and foreign currency markets, and 
determines its currency positions on a daily ba-
sis. Any exceptions to group policy or violations 
on group limits are subject to approval by the 
GRMC. Stress tests are regularly carried out to 
assess the impact of exchange rate movements 
on open currency positions (OCP) in each operat-
ing currency based on two scenarios: most prob-
able and worst case. 

Group policy forbids the bank to maintain OCPs 
for speculative purposes. However, FX deriva-
tives may be used for hedging purposes to close 
certain positions, in which case they are closely 
monitored at both local and group level. As of 
end-2010, the bank had OCPs totalling 7.32%. 
The Congolese franc depreciated steeply in 2009, 
but stabilised towards the end of that year and 
remained stable in 2010. The bank holds more li-
abilities than assets in USD and EUR, but strove 
to minimise its OCP by promoting term deposits 
in the local currency throughout the year.
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Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rates remained low on the international 
capital markets in 2010. In addition, the central 
bank lowered its treasury bill rate four times dur-
ing the year, from 68% to 19.5%. Maturity gap 
analysis and stress testing are used to measure 
and analyse the impact of interest rate shifts on 
interest income. 

A key policy measure undertaken in 2010 to miti-
gate interest rate risk was the introduction of 
variable interest rates on loans, allowing the 
bank to raise (or lower) the rates it charges in line 
with shifts in the market interest rates. 

Operational Risk Management

The Group Operational Risk Policy is in full com-
pliance with Basel II and German banking legisla-
tion. To minimise operational risk, all processes 
are precisely documented and subject to effec-
tive control mechanisms. Job descriptions are 
comprehensive, duties are strictly segregated, 
and dependency on key individuals is avoided.

When recruiting, the bank pays close attention to 
personal integrity, a quality which is reinforced 
through the bank’s strictly maintained code 
of  conduct and through comprehensive training 
programmes designed to promote a culture of 
transparency and risk-awareness.

The group-wide Risk Event Database (RED) en-
sures that operational risks are addressed in a 
systematic and transparent manner, with all re-
medial and preventive action clearly documented 
and accessible to management control, both at 
bank level and at group level. Staff are required 
to report all events which represent an actual or 
potential loss for the bank exceeding USD 500 
using the RED interface. 

As part of their initial training, all new staff mem-
bers are taught how to recognise and avoid oper-
ational risk and how to maintain information se-
curity. Additional training on these issues, and 
on how to use the RED, is given to the main users 
of the system. In 2010, ProCredit Bank Congo re-
ported 78 risk events representing a total net risk 
amount of EUR 510,839.02.

Every year the bank conducts a risk assessment 
procedure by completing a group-wide question-
naire on fraud risk and operational risk. Each of 
the risks described here must be mitigated by ap-
propriate controls, the adequacy of which is the 
subject of the assessment. If the controls are 
judged to be insufficient, an action plan for rem-
edying the situation is drawn up. The completed 
assessment is sent to the Group Operational Risk 
Management Department. 

In 2010 the bank introduced the group-wide New 
Risk Approval (NRA) process, which is applied to 
all materially new or changed products, services 
or business processes. Only after the elimination 
of any obstacles or deficiencies revealed by the 
NRA process does management give its approval 
for the innovation to go ahead.

The bank’s Business Continuity Policy ensures 
that the bank can maintain or restore its opera-
tions in a timely manner in the event of a serious 
disruption. As well as defining the steps to be 
taken to restore normal operations, the bank’s 
Business Continuity Plan specifies the procedure 
for moving critical operations to temporary loca-
tions, the resources that need to be mobilised in 
each type of case and the expected cost of dis-
ruptions in specific areas. It also offers guidance 
on avoiding disruption in the first place. 

In DR Congo, power supply outages are frequent. 
To contend with this issue, the bank has genera-
tors in the head office and branches, enabling it 
to maintain business activities during electricity 
failures. Another issue specific to DR Congo is the 
relatively high risk that clients will attempt to 
present false documents in order to gain access 
to the bank’s services. We plan to tighten our 
controls in order to address this.

Anti-Money Laundering

ProCredit Bank Congo fully endorses the fight 
against money laundering and terrorist financ-
ing, and has implemented the Group Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy, which meets the requirements 
of German and EU legislation. No customer is ac-
cepted and no transaction is executed unless the 
bank understands and agrees to the underlying 
purpose of the business relationship. The Group 
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Anti-Money Laundering Department (Group AML) 
conducts an annual survey of all ProCredit banks 
and updates the policy accordingly. In addition, 
all ProCredit banks submit quarterly reports on 
their AML activities to Group AML. 

At ProCredit Bank Congo, responsibility for AML 
activities is exercised by the AML Unit. According 
to local regulations, any suspicious account activ-
ity or attempt to execute a transaction that arous-
es suspicion of money laundering, terrorist fi-
nancing or some other criminal activity must be 
reported to the National Unit of Financial Inves-
tigation as well as to the Central Bank of Congo. 
Front-office staff receive intensive training in how 
to recognise suspicious transactions. In cases of 
doubt, Group AML takes the final  decision on how 
to handle the suspicious transactions and suspi-
cious customers reported by the bank.

Capital Adequacy

The bank’s capital adequacy is calculated on 
a  monthly basis and reported both to the man-
agement and to the Group Risk Management 
Committee, together with rolling forecasts to en-
sure future compliance with capital adequacy 
requirements. Strong support from our share-
holders once again enabled the bank to maintain 
a comfortable capital cushion. During 2010 it 
 received a total paid-in capital increase of USD 
6.0 million. At year-end 2010 the capital adequa-
cy ratio (tier 1 and tier 2 capital/risk-weighted 
assets) stood at 19.58%, well above the group-
wide target of 12% and the locally required mini-
mum of 10%.
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Branch Network

At the end of 2010, ProCredit Bank Congo had a 
total of 16 offices located in three different towns 
and cities. The main focus of the bank’s efforts to 
build a branch network was initially to consoli-
date its infrastructure in Kinshasa. However, in 
2009 the bank ventured outside the capital, em-
barking on a regional expansion programme that 
began with the opening of a branch in Matadi, in 
the neighbouring province of Bas-Congo, around 
370 km or a five-hour drive from Kinshasa. Bas-
Congo is primarily an agricultural region, and 
large volumes of goods pass through the port in 
Matadi on their way to Kinshasa. To increase 
brand recognition in Bas-Congo and support local 
agriculture, another branch was opened in 2010 
in Mbanza Ngungu half-way between Kinshasa 
and Matadi. 

In order to be able to respond in a differentiated 
manner to our customers’ needs, our branch net-
work comprises two types of offices. Lending 
business is concentrated in specialised branch-
es, where the majority of our business client 
 advisers and credit analysts are based. These 
branches provide not only credit products but 
also all of the bank’s other services for business 
clients and private individuals, including various 
types of account services, foreign exchange, 
money transfers and utilities payments. 

In addition to these full-scale branches, the bank 
also operates smaller service points in strategic, 
often densely populated neighbourhoods. The 
service points are designed to be convenient plac-
es for both private individuals and enterprises 
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to do their day-to-day retail banking business, but 
do not process loan applications. During 2010, 
one branch and two service points were opened 
in Kinshasa, and a full-scale branch went into op-
eration in Mbanzu Ngungu. Construction work is 
under way on a new service point in the harbour 
area of Matadi, and a new branch in Lubumbashi, 
DR Congo’s second-largest city and capital of 
Katanga province.

In the context of a general drive to enhance the 
bank’s customer focus, improvements were made 
to the interior design of the branches. The new 
“look”, which was first applied to one of the new-
ly opened service points in Kinshasa, will be suc-
cessively replicated throughout the network.

Our bank operates a growing network of ATMs: 
six new cash machines were installed in 2010, 
bringing the total to 21. In addition, 50 new POS 
terminals were supplied to local merchants, and 
cardholders can now make cashless purchases at 

the premises of 323 business customers of 
ProCredit Bank. In the year just ended, the bank 
received its principal membership licence from 
MasterCard, thus becoming the first bank in the 
country to issue both MasterCard and Visa cards 
and serve holders of both types of card with its 
POS and ATM acquiring infrastructure. 

Looking ahead, 2011 will be a year of major con-
struction projects. Work will begin on a new head 
office building on Kinshasa’s main boulevard, and 
the current head office will be converted into a 
training centre. Also under construction is the 
new branch in Lubumbashi, which will mark the 
start of the bank’s outreach to Katanga province, 
a three-hour flight away from Kinshasa. Despite 
the logistical challenges posed by its remoteness 
from the head office, the new branch will play a 
key role in supporting commercial and agricultur-
al activity in this strategically important region. 
Within Kinshasa, expansion will primarily take 
the form of opening new service points. 
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Organisation, Staff and Staff Development

In line with the group-wide focus on enhancing 
the quality of the relationship with our customers 
and improving service quality in 2010, the bank 
intensified its efforts to advance the professional 
and personal development of its staff. During 
the year, our employees participated in a total of 
12,655 internal training days, not including atten-
dance at the international ProCredit Academies. 

The bank’s Training Department works closely 
with HR to organise and co-ordinate all local and 
international training programmes. Special ef-
forts were made to boost the staff’s English and 
maths skills in 2010, with two English teachers 
and eight maths teachers providing training to 
both new employees and more experienced col-
leagues. In addition to refresher training cours-
es, the Training Department also offers middle 
management seminars. A new training centre is 
planned for 2011. 

In the context of the ProCredit group’s interna-
tional initiative to raise the level of mathematical 
knowledge among its staff, ProCredit Bank Congo 
introduced maths courses along with a basic maths 

test that every staff member is required to pass. 
To facilitate attendance at the courses, they are 
held at both the training centre and the branches. 
Nearly 90% of the staff participated in a maths 
course in 2010. Pre-tests were offered to help em-
ployees identify their weak spots prior to the ex-
ams. Weekly exercises were also made available 
for staff wishing to gain additional maths practice.  

A large proportion of the training provided to cur-
rent and potential middle managers takes place 
outside DR Congo at the international ProCredit 
Academies. In 2010, 5 colleagues from ProCredit 
Bank Congo graduated from the ProCredit Regional 
Academy for Africa in Maputo, Mozambique, while 
another 12 completed the first year of their two-
year course. Four of the bank’s staff earned their 
“ProCredit Banker” diploma, marking the suc-
cessful completion of the highly intensive three-
year programme offered at the central ProCredit 
Academy in Fürth, Germany. 

An external facilitator was engaged to organise a 
skills training programme for middle management. 
Additional training was offered to strengthen our 
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middle managers’ ability to perform internal con-
trols, which is a crucial part of their jobs and in-
dispensable for the health of the bank.

The adoption of a new group-wide business strat-
egy in 2010, with its increased emphasis on build-
ing long-term customer relationships, necessitat-
ed various changes to the bank’s organisational 
structure. To reflect the shift in focus from a prod-
uct-based to a client-based approach, the bank is 
in the process to restructure the Private Individual 
and Business departments to emphasise client 
satisfaction and sales activities. Meanwhile, busi-
ness support activities, such as processing and 
product development, were assigned to specific 
back office departments.   

The internal organisation of the branches is also 
in the process of being revised, with separate 
front office areas for business clients and private 
individuals, respectively. In this context, various 
trainings are planned to ensure that staff has the 
requisite skills for their assignments within this 
modified structure. 

Given the bank’s focus on consolidation and 
quality in 2010, recruitment of new personnel 
took place on a much more limited scale than in 

 previous years. Nonetheless, 96 people joined the 
bank in 2010, bringing the total at year-end to 470 
(including support staff). In line with the ProCredit 
group’s new recruitment policy, all shortlisted 
 applicants are now invited to take a “maths and 
logic” test, which is set by ProCredit Holding. 
Successful candidates then take part in group dis-
cussions and role plays, where among other 
things their interpersonal skills are assessed, fol-
lowed by individual in depth interviews with sen-
ior staff of the bank. 

ProCredit Bank Congo understands that the key 
to providing high quality service lies in building 
a  team of motivated, professionally competent 
staff who are jointly committed to the bank’s mis-
sion and objectives, and who work well together 
on the basis of mutual trust and respect. For this 
reason, in addition to its substantial investment 
in training, the bank also sponsors numerous 
 leisure activities, which this year included a 
Sunday-morning walk around the city and a staff 
football tournament. In 2010, the bank also held 
a fifth anniversary celebration and the individual 
branches and departments organised various 
employee excursions.
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Business Ethics and Environmental Standards

Part of the overall mission of the ProCredit group 
is to set standards in the financial sectors in which 
we operate. We want to make a difference not 
only in terms of the target groups we serve and 
the quality of the financial services we provide, 
but also with regard to business ethics. Our strong 
corporate values play a key role in this respect. 
Six essential principles guide the operations of 
the ProCredit institutions:

• Transparency: We adhere to the principle of 
providing transparent information both to our 
customers and the general public and to our 
employees, and our conduct is straightforward 
and open;

• A culture of open communication: We are open, 
fair and constructive in our communication 
with each other, and deal with conflicts at work 
in a professional manner, working together to 
find solutions;

• Social responsibility and tolerance: We offer 
our clients sound advice and assess their eco-
nomic and financial situation, business poten-
tial and repayment capacity so that they can 
benefit from the most appropriate loan prod-
ucts. Promoting a savings culture is an impor-
tant part of our mission, and we are committed 
to treating all customers and employees with 
fairness and respect, regardless of their ori-
gin, colour, language, gender or religious or 
political beliefs;

• Service orientation: Every client is served in a 
friendly, competent and courteous manner. Our 
employees are committed to providing excel-
lent service to all customers, regardless of their 
background or the size of their business;

• High professional standards: Our employees 
take personal responsibility for the quality of 
their work and always strive to grow as pro-
fessionals;

• A high degree of personal commitment: This 
goes hand-in-hand with integrity and honesty – 
traits which are required of all employees in 
the ProCredit group.

These six values represent the backbone of our 
corporate culture and are discussed and actively 
applied in our day-to-day operations. Moreover, 
they are reflected in the ProCredit Code of 
Conduct, which transforms the group’s ethical 
principles into practical guidelines for all staff. 
To make sure that new employees fully under-

stand all of the principles that have been defined, 
induction training includes sessions dedicated to 
the Code of Conduct and its significance for all 
members of our team. Regular refresher training 
sessions help to ensure that employees remain 
committed to our high ethical standards and are 
kept abreast of new issues and developments 
which have an ethical dimension for our institu-
tion. These events allow existing staff to analyse 
recent case studies and discuss any grey areas.

Another aspect of ensuring that our institution ad-
heres to the highest ethical standards is our con-
sistent application of best practice systems and 
procedures to protect ourselves from being used 
as a vehicle for money laundering or other illegal 
activities such as the financing of terrorist activi-
ties. An important focus here is to “know your 
customer”, and, in line with this principle, to carry 
out sound reporting and comply with the applica-
ble regulations. Updated anti-money laundering 
and fraud prevention policies are being intro-
duced across the group to ensure compliance with 
German regulatory standards.

We also set standards regarding the impact of 
our lending operations on the environment. 
ProCredit Bank Congo has imple-
mented an environmental manage-
ment system based on continuous 
assessment of the loan portfolio 
according to environmental crite-
ria, an in-depth analysis of all 
economic activities which poten-
tially involve environmental risks, 
and the rejection of loan appli-
cations from enterprises en-
gaged in activities which are 
deemed environmentally haz-
ardous and appear on our in-
stitution’s  exclusion list. By 
incorporating environmental 
issues into the loan approval 
process, ProCredit Bank Congo is 
also able to raise its  clients’ overall level of envi-
ronmental awareness. We also ensure that re-
quests for loans are evaluated in terms of the 
 applicant’s compliance with ethical business 
practices. No loans are issued to enterprises or 
individuals if it is suspected that they are mak-
ing use of unsafe or morally objectionable forms 
of labour, in particular child labour.
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The ProCredit Group: Responsible Neighbourhood Banks for 
Small Businesses and Ordinary People

The ProCredit group comprises 21 financial insti-
tutions providing banking services in transition 
economies and developing countries. ProCredit 
banks are responsible neighbourhood banks. This 
means, in the neighbourhoods in which we work, 
we aim to:

• be the house bank of choice for the very small, 
small and medium-sized enterprises which 
create jobs and drive economic development, 
and

• provide secure and transparent savings and 
banking services to ordinary people who are 
looking for an affordable bank they can trust. 

At the end of 2010 our 15,600 employees, working 
in some 740 branches, were serving 3 million cus-
tomers in Eastern Europe, Latin America and Africa.

The history of the ProCredit group is a rich one 
and forms the basis of what we are today. The 
first ProCredit banks were founded more than a 
decade ago with the aim of making a develop-
ment impact by promoting the growth of small 
businesses. We sought to achieve this by provid-
ing loans tailored to their requirements and offer-
ing deposit facilities that would encourage low-
income individuals and families to save. The group 
has grown strongly over the years, and today we 
are one of the leading providers of banking serv-
ices to small business clients in most of the coun-
tries in which we operate. 

Our origins lie in our pioneering microfinance po-
sitioning. This positioning has developed as our 
markets and our clients have developed so our 
socially responsible approach remains as rele-
vant today as ever. Its importance has been un-
derscored by the financial crisis and subsequent 
significant macroeconomic decline which most of 
our countries of operation experienced over the 
last two years. As enterprises adjust to and ex-
pand again in their new economic reality and or-
dinary people rebuild their trust in banks, it is 
clear that our customers need a reliable banking 
partner now more than ever. This has also given 
us the impetus to further strengthen our compre-
hensive customer-oriented approach with more 
highly specialised and well trained staff.

Unlike most other banks operating in our markets, 
we have always avoided aggressive consumer 

lending and speculative lines of business. Instead, 
the ProCredit banks work in close contact with 
their clients to gain a full understanding of the 
problems small businesses face and the opportu-
nities that are available to them. Our credit tech-
nology, developed over many years with the sup-
port of the German consulting company IPC, relies 
on the careful individual analysis of credit risks. 
By making the effort to know our clients well and 
maintain long-term relationships based on trust 
and understanding, we are well positioned to sup-
port them not only when the economy is buoyant, 
but also during a downturn and recovery. Over the 
last two years, the ability of our loan officers to 
proactively make appropriate adaptations to pay-
ment plans where necessary to reflect clients’ new 
and more challenging sales environments has 
played an important role in maintaining good loan 
portfolio quality.

We not only extend loans, but also offer our en-
terprise clients a broad range of other banking 
services such as cash management, domestic 
and international money transfers, payroll serv-
ices, POS terminals and payment and credit 
cards. These services are geared towards assist-
ing our business clients to operate more effi-
ciently and more formally and thus help to 
strengthen the real economy and the banking 
sector as a whole. In these terms ProCredit has a 
“whole customer” focus rather than a simple 
product focus. Our staff and our branches are be-
coming more specialised and better equipped to 
cater to the needs of different client segments.

Today we have less of a focus on traditional “mi-
crofinance” than we did in the past. At the end 
of  2009, we increased the minimum loan size 
for enterprise clients to EUR/USD 2,000 in most 
countries since we found that below this limit 
there is such broad access to loans from con-
sumer finance providers that “excess” had be-
come more of a challenge for many clients than 
“access”. For these groups we prefer to offer de-
posit accounts and other banking services rather 
than credit.

Our targeted efforts to foster a savings culture in 
our countries of operation have enabled us to 
build a stable deposit base. ProCredit deposit 
 facilities are appropriate for a broad range of 
 lower- and middle-income customers. We place 
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particular emphasis on working with the own-
ers, employees and families associated with our 
core target group of very small, small and medi-
um-sized businesses. ProCredit banks offer sim-
ple savings products and place great emphasis on 
promoting children’s savings accounts and on run-
ning financial literacy campaigns in the broader 
community. In addition to deposit facilities, we of-
fer our clients a full range of standard retail bank-
ing services. Over 2010 ProCredit institutions 
managed to maintain a high level of liquidity given 
the stability of their loyal retail deposit base.

The ProCredit group has a simple business mod-
el: providing banking services to a diverse range 
of enterprises and the ordinary people who live 
and work around our branches. As a result, our 

banks have a transparent, low-risk profile. We do 
not rely heavily on capital market funding and 
have no exposure to complex financial products. 
Furthermore, our staff are well trained, flexible 
and able to provide competent advice to clients, 
guiding them through difficult times as well as 
good times. Despite the turmoil of the global fi-
nancial markets, the performance of the ProCredit 
group has been remarkably stable: we ended 
2010 with a good liquidity position, comfortable 
capital adequacy, PAR over 30 days of 3.7%, and 
a modest profit. Given the very difficult macro-
economic situation in many of our countries of op-
eration, this was a strong performance.

Our shareholders have always taken a conserva-
tive, long-term view of business development, 
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aiming to strike the right balance between a 
shared developmental goal – reaching as many 
small enterprises and small savers as possible – 
and achieving commercial success.

Strong shareholders provide a solid foundation 
for the ProCredit group. It is led by ProCredit 
Holding AG, a German-based company that was 
founded by IPC in 1998. ProCredit Holding is a 
public-private partnership. The private share-
holders include: IPC and IPC Invest, an invest-
ment vehicle set up by IPC and ProCredit staff 
members; the Dutch DOEN Foundation; the US 
pension fund TIAA-CREF; the US Omidyar-Tufts 
Microfinance Fund; and the Swiss investment 
fund responsAbility. The public shareholders in-
clude the German KfW Bankengruppe (KfW 
 banking group); IFC, the private sector arm of 
the  World Bank; the Dutch development bank 
FMO; the Belgian Investment Company for De-
veloping Countries (BIO) and Proparco, the 
French Investment and Promotions Company for 
Economic Co-operation. The group also receives 
strong support from the EBRD and Commerzbank, 
our minority shareholders in Eastern Europe, and 
from the Inter-American Development Bank (IDB) 
in Latin America. With the strong support of its 
shareholders and other partners, the ProCredit 
group ended the year with a total capital adequa-

cy ratio of 16.5% – a figure that reflects their con-
fidence in the group.

ProCredit Holding is not only a source of equity 
for its subsidiaries, but also a guide for the 
 de velopment of the ProCredit banks, providing 
the  personnel for their senior management and 
 offering support in all key areas of activity. The 
 holding company ensures the implementation of 
ProCredit corporate values, best practice bank-
ing operations and Basel II risk management 
principles across the group. The group’s busi-
ness is run in accordance with the rigorous regu-
latory standards imposed by the German banking 
supervisory authority (BaFin).

ProCredit Holding and the ProCredit group place 
a strong emphasis on human resource manage-
ment. Our “neighbourhood bank” concept is not 
limited to our target customers and how we reach 
them; it also concerns the way in which we work 
with our staff and how we encourage them to 
work with their customers. The strength of our 
relationships with our customers will continue to 
be central to working with them effectively in 
2010 and achieving steady business results. In 
2010 there was a strong focus on staff quality 
and efficiency, which resulted in a 20% reduction 
in the number of staff over the year. This focus 
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has been supported by the introduction of a new 
group-wide recruitment policy and a demanding 
training programme for all staff. This is comple-
mented by a six month stipend or intern pro-
gramme provided by ProCredit banks for new en-
trants into the banking sector which symbolises 
our commitment to skill development in all our 
countries of operation.

A responsible approach to neighbourhood bank-
ing requires a decentralised decision-making 
process and a high level of judgment and adapt-
ability from all staff members, especially our 
branch managers. Our corporate values embed 
principles such as open communication, trans-
parency and professionalism into our day-to-day 
business. Key to our success is therefore the re-
cruitment and training of dedicated staff. We 
maintain a corporate culture that promotes the 
professional development of our employees 
while fostering a deep sense of personal and so-
cial responsibility. This entails not only intensive 
training in technical and management skills, but 
also frequent staff exchanges between our mem-
ber institutions. In this way, we take full advan-
tage of the opportunities for staff development 
that are created by the existence of a truly inter-
national group.

A central plank in our approach to training is the 
ProCredit Academy in Germany, which provides a 
part-time “ProCredit Banker” training pro-
gramme over a period of three years for high-po-
tential staff from each of the ProCredit institu-
tions. The curriculum includes intensive technical 

training and also exposes participants to sub-
jects such as anthropology, history, philosophy 
and ethics in an open and multicultural learning 
environment. Our goal in covering such varied 
topics is to give our future managers the opportu-
nity to develop their knowledge and views of the 
world. At the same time, we aim to improve their 
communication and staff management skills. The 
group also operates three Regional Academies in 
Latin America, Africa and Eastern Europe to sup-
port the professional development of middle 
managers at the local level.

The group’s strategy for 2011 focuses on two key 
interrelated themes “high quality customer rela-
tions” and “efficiency”. We will further expand 
our business as the “house bank” of choice for 
small and very small enterprises, offering tai-
lored loans and other banking services. At the 
same time we will continue to improve the speed 
and convenience of our services for all clients.
 
Strong investment in our staff will also remain a 
key priority since it is their skills which enable us 
to build strong, broad-based relationships with 
our clients, which are a particularly important fac-
tor of success in volatile macroeconomic condi-
tions. As a group of responsible banks for ordi-
nary people with prudent policies and well-trained 
staff to ensure our steady performance, we look 
forward to consolidating our position as a “house 
bank” for small businesses, their employees, and 
the ordinary people who live and work in the 
neighbourhoods around our branches.
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ProCredit in Africa

ProCredit began operations in Africa when Banco 
ProCredit Mozambique was founded in 2000. 
Today, 10 years on, ProCredit serves 370,000 cli-
ents in Mozambique, Ghana and the Democratic 
Republic of Congo, providing transparent, respon-
sible banking services to small and very small 
businesses as well as to ordinary people. Despite 
the presence of a growing number of banks and 
microfinance institutions in our  countries of oper-
ation, ProCredit institutions meet the needs of 
their clients for accessible and professional bank-
ing services in a way that other banks do not.

For our enterprise clients, ProCredit institutions 
in Africa accompany entrepreneurs along the 
whole development of their business. Skilled 
ProCredit staff evaluate the debt capacity of each 
client’s business, tailor a financial offer to that cli-
ent’s needs and maintain a long-term relationship 
with that client. In our countries of operation, 
small businesses (particularly those involved in 
vital local production and agricultural activities) 
are still very poorly served by banking sectors as 
a whole. ProCredit is committed to those busi-
nesses because they play an essential role in sus-
tainable development and employment creation. 
Today, our banks in Africa provide 25,000 loans to 
enterprises, for a total amount of USD 88 million.

For the ordinary people that live and work around 
our branches, ProCredit institutions in Africa fo-
cus on promoting savings and providing efficient 
modern payment services with transparent fee 
structures. In Africa, nine out of ten ProCredit 
 clients are non-loan customers. We serve large 
numbers of account-holders with small balances 
because we believe providing people with some-
where safe to save is an essential service. Through 
our network of more than 60 branches and serv-
ice points, 1,512 staff and 63 ATMs, at the end of 
2010 ProCredit banks in Africa managed 419,531 
accounts with a volume of some USD 197.0 mil-
lion. Thus, the loan portfolios of the ProCredit 
 institutions in Africa are financed with locally 
mobilised savings.

We have ambitious goals in Africa: to create 
strong institutions which have a significant de-
velopment impact and set new standards in 
terms of transparency and accessibility for our 
clients and for the markets in which we operate. 
We do this in often challenging environments.

The global phenomenon of aggressive consumer 
lending has been felt increasingly in Africa. 
Borrowers can now readily accumulate multiple 
loans. In many areas, since credit bureaus func-
tion poorly and financial literacy is often limited, 
the problem of overindebtedness has reached 
worrying levels. Furthermore, the last two years 
were characterised by macroeconomic uncertain-
ty, with a decline in key exports, reduced inflows 
of remittances from abroad and currency depre-
ciation. These developments have led to high lev-
els of non-performing loans in banking sectors. 
The situation has often been exacerbated by po-
litical tensions and social unrest due to rising 
prices and intransparent public policies. In more 
difficult economic times, sometimes erratic in-
terventions from authorities, changes in the le-
gal and fiscal framework, and the weaknesses of 
court systems become more marked. 

What have these developments meant for 
ProCredit? A combination of these factors led to 
the decision to exit Sierra Leone, by transferring 
the ownership of our recently founded bank to 
Ecobank, an institution with a commitment to 
continue to provide microfinance services. More 
widely, 2010 did see a decline in loan portfolio 
quality. Despite our efforts to promote conserva-
tive, responsible lending, ProCredit institutions 
and their customers are not isolated from the 
economy as a whole. The portfolio at risk (over 30 
days) of the ProCredit institutions in Africa in-
creased to 5.8% at the end of the year. Throughout 
2010 ProCredit staff worked intensively with cli-
ents to help them solve arrears problems. 

We learned a lot in the process – about ourselves, 
our clients and about the markets in which we op-
erate – and it prompted a range of institutional 
changes. Above all our response has been to be-
come more focused: on our customers; on quality 
and efficiency; and on staff. 

As a first step, ProCredit institutions in Africa, 
and throughout the group, raised their minimum 
enterprise loan size (typically to USD 2,000) so 
that staff could focus more strongly on sustaina-
ble very small and small businesses which have 
the greatest capacity to create employment and 
economic stability. In our countries of operation, 
whilst “micro-micro” borrowers now have easier 
access to consumer loans, leading to high arrears 
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rates in this segment, very small, small and even 
medium businesses typically lack a financial 
partner which is really committed to serving their 
long-term banking needs, and which has the req-
uisite capacity and expertise to do so effectively. 
In Africa, there is tremendous value in support-
ing these segments with a “whole customer” ap-
proach embracing loans, account services and 
electronic banking. Yet these businesses are of-
ten not easy to serve: they tend to be informal, 
their collateral is unreliable, their owners often 
have limited management experience and their 
business and personal environment is volatile. 
Consequently, we have invested heavily in staff 
training, knowing that professional expertise is 
crucial for continued success in expanding the 
number of small and especially very small enter-
prises we serve.

With our lower income and “micro-micro” clients, 
our challenge is currently less to provide loans, 
and more to provide savings and con venient 
transaction services more efficiently. Confronted 
with high maintenance costs due to weak commu-
nications and transport infrastructures and often 
overcrowded banking halls, the need to optimise 
quality, costs and efficiency is pressing in Africa. 

Today we differentiate more at the branch level: 
to complement our branches we are opening 
small service points that offer standard banking 
transactions, and, at the other end of the scale, 
creating specialised business centres with the 
capacity to address the more complex needs of 
SMEs. We are making more use of technology to 
reduce transaction costs and increase conven-
ience. For example, cards are being strongly pro-
moted to allow our customers to make simple 
withdrawals or balance queries at any time and at 
more locations. Mobile banking, which has been 
successfully launched in Mozambique to allow 
balance queries and transfers between ProCredit 
accounts, will be expanded to D. R. Congo and 
Ghana in 2011. 

These changes have been accompanied by a 
stronger focus than ever on the recruitment, 
training, development and assessment of our 
staff. The number of staff in our three institutions 
in Africa decreased in 2010 by 14.6% as efficien-
cy was increased and fewer “micro-micro” loans 
were disbursed. This was a necessary, but not an 
easy adjustment. At the same time our staff 
showed tremendous commitment to the process 
and to the new training and professional devel-
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opment opportunities. The ProCredit Regional 
Academy continues to be a central aspect of our 
middle management training. In 2010, the acad-
emy was moved to Europe in order to better inte-
grate our African colleagues into the wider group. 

We gratefully acknowledge the support of the Bill 
and Melinda Gates Foundation, the French 
Develop ment Agency (AFD) and the Belgian 
Investment Company (BIO) which have helped to 
fund the training of local staff in order to build 
the necessary internal capacities to serve very 
small and small businesses and to expand fur-
ther into new regions, especially those with high 
agricultural potential.

The group’s new recruitment strategy in Africa 
reflects our renewed focus on customer rela-
tions, staff quality and efficiency. A centralised 
and transparent process has been implemented, 
together with a system of continuous supervision 
and coaching for newcomers. A six month stipend 
programme has been introduced for young grad-
uates who want to learn about responsible bank-
ing. Such initiatives are especially relevant in 
Africa, where recruitment elsewhere is too often 
based on “who you know” rather than on “what 
you are capable of”. 

In summary, 2010 was characterised by stream-
lining processes to more clearly reflect customer 
needs, combined with close attention to staff re-
cruitment and development. This has resulted in 
institutions that are even more robust and cohe-
sive than before. The ProCredit institutions in 
Africa ended the year with modest growth and a 
return on average equity of 2.6%, a steady result 
given the difficult backdrop and the institutional 
changes made in 2010. 

Looking forward based on the lessons learned 
from our first decade in Africa, our main objective 
in 2011 will be to further develop the quality of 
our relationships with our enterprise customers 
in order to consolidate our positioning as the 
house bank for very small and small businesses. 
The loan portfolio is projected to grow by some 
29% in 2011. Our objective will also be to in-
crease the efficiency of our retail operations 
through a more differentiated network of branch-
es and smaller units, and through the appropri-
ate use of technology. Investment in our staff – and 
their commitment – will continue to be central to 
achieving these objectives.
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*  The figures in this section have been compiled on the basis of the financial and operational reporting performed in accordance with group-
wide standards; they may differ from the figures reported in the bank’s local statements.

Highlights*

Founded in 2004
16 branches
7,734 loans / USD 39.8 million in loans
162,302 deposit accounts / USD 125.9 million
468 employees

Founded in July 2002
26 branches
10,410 loans / USD 25.2 million in loans
133,651 deposit accounts / USD 35.6 million
514 employees

Founded in December 2000
21 branches
15,916 loans / USD 32.5 million in loans
123,578 deposit accounts / USD 35.5 million
530 employees

Contact

4b Avenue des Aviateurs
Gombe, Kinshasa
Tel.: +243 81 830 25 00
Fax: +49 69 255 770 42
mail@procreditbank.cd
www.procreditbank.cd

Plot No. B28A, Airport City
Airport Residential Area, Airport
Opposite Silver Star Tower
P.O. Box NT 328, New Town
Accra
Tel.: +233 21 775 830/46
Fax: +233 21 775 809
info@procredit.com.gh
www.procredit.com.gh

267 Av. Zedequias Manganhela
Jat IV, 6th floor right, Maputo
Tel.: +258 21 313 344
Fax: +258 21 313 345
info@bancoprocredit.co.mz
www.bancoprocredit.co.mz

Name

ProCredit Bank
Democratic Republic of 
Congo

ProCredit
Savings and Loans Company
Ghana

Banco ProCredit
Mozambique

P r o C r e d i t  i n  A f r i c a 41



Our Clients

Isaac Kayembe Ntumba, 52, was trained as a con-
struction engineer but took over the family bak-
ery when his father died in 1999. Known for its 
delectable goods and friendly service, the small 
business could not keep up with demand. Isaac 
enlisted the help of his brothers and decided it 
was time to expand operations. 

Having had no prior banking experience, Isaac 
was referred to ProCredit Bank Congo by a friend 
who owns a farm and is a satisfied client of 
the  bank. In 2007 Isaac requested a loan from 
ProCredit for USD 16,000. The credit was ap-
proved, marking the beginning of his long-term 
relationship with the bank. This first loan ena-
bled the Ntumba brothers to enlarge the bakery 
premises and acquire new equipment, including 
two ovens and a pastry-kneading machine. 

“The loan changed my business,” 
Isaac explains. 

“ProCredit helped us to greatly increase our 
production capacity.” 

This positive experience inspired him to apply 
for a second loan, which the family used to open 
a new cake shop. Business continued to boom, 
and the Ntumbas put their third and fourth 

ProCredit loans towards acquiring stock and fur-
ther increasing output.

Isaac sees ProCredit Bank Congo as a partner 
that cares about him and his business. 

“Thanks to the regular advice I receive from my 
ProCredit Client Adviser, I have become a more 

efficient manager and have formalised the 
business.”

The bakery has quadrupled its output and now 
employs twenty salaried bakers and ten hourly 
workers. 

Over time, Isaac began using some of ProCredit’s 
other services to improve his business. In addi-
tion to the current account he holds at the bank, 
he uses his Visa card for regular transactions and 
payments. He is also a dedicated saver and vocal 
fan of the bank: his family and friends now have 
accounts at ProCredit Bank Congo, too.

His ambitious future goals are to modernise the 
business even further, acquire additional ma-
chines, open another bakery in Mbinza Ozone in 
Kinshasa and welcome new customers.

Isaac Kayembe Ntumba, 
Bakery Owner

A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 01042



Blandine Nlandu Luvungu, 56, has had a green 
thumb since her childhood in the village of 
Yanama in Bas-Congo. Married to a provincial 
Member of Parliament, this mother of five and 
former primary school teacher has been farming 
her 30-hectare plot of land in Mbanza Ngungu 
with her own resources for 10 years. Potatoes, 
manioc, beans, hot peppers, and tomatoes are 
among the many crops thriving under her care. 
Always striving to improve herself, Blandine has 
attended several agricultural training sessions 
with NGOs over the years in order to sharpen her 
farming and business skills. She has even re-
ceived recognition as an outstanding farmer by 
USAID, FAO, AGRISUD and HUP. When she is not 
busy farming, Blandine also operates a beverage 
distribution business.

For many years, Blandine was content to run her 
farm on her own and had no interest in using the 
services of a bank. Her first encounter with 
ProCredit Bank Congo took place when bank 
staff paid her a visit on one of her own fields. 
Impressed with the staff’s friendliness and in-
trigued by the services PCBC had to offer, 
Blandine opened a current account at the bank 
in September 2010. One month later, she took 
out her first loan for an amount of USD 10,000. 
This financing allowed her to improve her culti-
vation techniques and purchase seed. Pleased 
with the bank’s checking services, which she 
uses to pay her various suppliers, Blandine is 
also considering opening a term deposit ac-
count in Congolese francs.

“Now that I use ProCredit Bank, I cannot imagine 
running my farm without it. The staff really 

understand my business objectives as well as all 
of the agricultural aspects. I know I can count on 

the bank to help me grow in the future.”

Looking ahead, Blandine hopes to expand her 
farming operations with another loan from 
ProCredit. Already a highly respected agricultur-
al distributor in Mbanza Ngungu, her dream is to 
build up a large supply of potatoes and other 
crops to sell in Kinshasa. 

Blandine Nlandu Luvungu, 
Agricultural Client
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Véronique Marthe Maloba, 48, is the owner and 
general manager of Aero Shuttles, a passenger 
transport company created in March 2008 that 
collaborates with several airline companies in 
the Democratic Republic of Congo. Along with 
her husband, Eric, she was inspired to start the 
business when she noticed that many airlines 
lacked passenger shuttles. She started by hiring 
three employees and buying one minibus, which 
she dispatched from an office in the Ngaliema 
neighbourhood.

Véronique learned about ProCredit Bank in 
February 2008 through her husband, who had a 
current account there. She too opened a current 
account and now uses several other products and 
services offered by the bank, including debit 
cards, money transfers and e-banking services. 
As Aero Shuttles became well known, one bus 
was no longer sufficient to serve new clients in 
addition to the many regular customers that 
Véronique had acquired over time.

“That is when I decided to contact ProCredit Bank 
Congo for a loan to buy another bus and open 

another dispatch office in Kinshasa,”
Véronique explains.

In December 2009 ProCredit Bank granted 
Veronique her very first loan of USD 60,000, 
which allowed her to purchase three new buses 
for Aero Shuttles. Thanks to the loan, she was 
also able to hire three more drivers and three as-
sistants to work in the newly opened dispatch 
office in Limete. Véronique’s ambition is to make 
Aero Shuttles the number one airport shuttle 
company in the DR Congo; the next step is to 
open a dispatch office in Lubumbashi in the 
Katanga region. 

“Without ProCredit Bank I would not have been 
able to develop our business into what it is 

today. I hope the bank will expand its branch 
network to reach out and help other 

 businesspeople like me to develop both their 
businesses as well as the nation.”

Véronique Marthe Teyssandier Maloba,
Passenger Transport Business Owner
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Jean-Pierre Mbuku Mbumba, 63, certainly has a 
head for business. Born in the province of Bas-
Congo to a banker father, he soon proved to be a 
talented entrepreneur, selling bluejeans by the 
age of 15. Not surprisingly, he went on to study 
commercial sciences at the University of France 
and later held administrative jobs at several com-
panies in the private and public sectors. 

Despite having endured tremendous financial set-
backs over the years, Jean-Pierre has never given 
up. His hard work and indomitable spirit have 
made him into one of the DR Congo’s top business-
men. He owns several plantations in central Africa, 
but he is perhaps best known for Mona Paradis, an 
agricultural complex and tourist resort located in 
the municipality of N’djili in Kinshasa. 

Unable to obtain government financing for this 
ambitious project, Jean-Pierre turned to ProCredit 
Bank Congo in the late 1990s following a recom-
mendation from the German ambassador. He dis-
cussed his lifelong dream – to establish an agri-

cultural tourism complex – with ProCredit lending 
staff and ultimately received a loan of USD 20,000 
in August 2010. Among other things, that first 
loan enabled Jean-Pierre to finish building his ho-
tel and hire five more workers to maintain the 120 
hectare property. 

Today, Mona Paradis boasts more than 12,000 
mangosteen trees and hosts thousands of tour-
ists every year. Its livestock station breeds pigs, 
chickens and rabbits, and visitors can relax and 
enjoy refreshments on the waterfront after tour-
ing the resort’s botanical gardens. 

“ProCredit Bank has helped me to make my 
dream come true. The loan I received 

helped me to serve more clients and expand 
the range of services offered at my business. 
I plan to work with the bank for a long time. 

Mona Paradis is thriving, and with continued 
support from ProCredit, I feel confident 

that I can make it even better,”
he explains.

Jean-Pierre Mbuku Mbumba, 
Plantation Owner 
and Tourism Operator
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Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010.
Prepared in accordance with local GAAP.

ProCredit Bank Congo s.a.r.l.

Independent Accountant’s Report on the Financial Statements
as at 31 december 2010.
(Expressed in Congolese Francs – CDF)

22 March 2011
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Balance Sheet
As of 31 December 2010 and 2009 
(Expressed in Congolese franc)

Notes 1 to 33 are integral part of those financial statements.

 Notes 2010   2009 
Assets
Treasury and interbank transactions   
Cash, deposits with Central Bank of Congo and Banks 3 33,140,675,639 20,851,313,165
Portfolio of public bonds 4 237,000,000 20,000,000
Loan and advance to other banks 5 35,059,168,087 36,480,024,772
Total treasury and interbank transactions  68,436,843,726 57,351,337,937

Transactions with clients   
Portfolio-securities 6 18,055,067,324 12,705,272,325
Loan and advance to customers 7 34,881,531,398 29,854,119,599
Total transactions with clients  52,936,598,722 42,559,391,924

Other assets and accruals
Other assets 8 1,194,379,819 1,212,287,667
Prepaid expenses and other 9 681,027,758    614,019,014
Total other assets and accruals  1,875,407,577 1,826,306,681
   
Fixed assets   
Intangible assets 10 3,327,748,271 356,636,071
Property, plant and equipment 11 8,219,733,170 5,887,424,757
Total fixed assets  11,547,481,441 6,244,060,828
   
Total Asset  134,796,331,466 107,981,097,370
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Balance Sheet
As of 31 December 2010 and 2009 
(Expressed in Congolese franc)

Notes 1 to 33 are integral part of those financial statements.

 Notes 2010   2009 
Liabilities
Treasury and interbank transactions
Loro correspondents and Central Bank accounts 12 27,684,757 333,699,386
Total treasury and interbank transactions  27,684,757 333,699,386
   
Transactions with clients 
Liabilities to customers 13 116,426,071,727 96,108,045,562  
Total transactions with clients  116,426,071,727 96,108,045,562  
   
Other liabilities and accruals   
Other liabilities 14 1,946,844,526 1,447,990,368  
Accruals 15 789,674,651 427,393,788  
Total other liabilities and accruals  2,736,519,177 1,875,384,156  
   
Provisions for risks, expenses and losses 16 838,881,843 732,733,082  

Equities
Subscribed capital  17 12,406,849,000 6,808,059,000  
Revaluation surplus  1,980,209,492 1,241,338,335
Provision for share capital reconstitution  1,003,807,974 986,202,670  
Retained earnings  (245,714,129) 1,210,093,128  
Grant equipment 18 56,719,614 162,951,422  
Profit (loss) for the year  (434,697,989) (1,477,409,371)
Total equities   14,767,173,962 8,931,235,184
   
Total liabilities  134,796,331,466 107,981,097,370  
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Income Statement 
For the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in Congolese franc)

Notes 1 to 33 are integral part of those financial statements.

 Notes 2010   2009 
Income from treasury and interbank transactions 19 124,862,771 185,480,572  
Charges from treasury and interbank transactions 20 (1,405,908,474) (467,350,225)
Income on transactions with customers 21 13,432,307,081 9,806,220,129  
Charges on transactions with customers 22 (1,363,064,799) (794,693,708)
Other operating income 23 4,174,064,074 989,233,611  
Other operating expenses 24 (1,006,181,099) (446,273,706)
Net banking income  13,956,079,553   9,272,616,672  

Grant   25 84,981,376   210,634,575  
General operating expenses 26 (5,782,345,155) (3,916,511,653)
Staff costs 27 (4,707,751,987) (3,715,408,356)
Taxes  28    (413,388,918) (393,322,494)
Gross operating profit  3,137,574,869   1,458,008,745
  
Depreciation 29 (1,391,582,656) (625,627,376)
Reversals of depreciation  – –
Profit before taxes and non-operating income/expenses  1,745,992,213   832,381,369
  
Allowance for impairment, losses on loans and advances 
and reversals of provisions 30 (1,791,322,109) (1,552,888,094)
Exceptional incomes and expenses 31  (94,419,760) (80,305,187)
Net profit (loss) before taxes  (139,749,656) (800,811,912)

Corporate tax 32 (294,948,332) (676,597,459)
Net profit (loss) of the year  (434,697,988) (1,477,409,371)
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in Congolese franc)

Notes 1 to 33 are integral part of those financial statements.

 2010   2009 
Operating activities
Bank income received (excluding income from investment portfolio) 17,732,655,749 12,872,047,726
Bank operating expenses disbursed (3,775,361,107) 2,086,774,594
Deposits/withdrawals of deposits from other Banks and Financial Institutions (1,420,856,685) –
Loans and advances/loan repayment and advances to customers (5,433,650,707) (16,649,994,210)
Deposits/withdrawals of deposits from customers 20,318,026,165 35,928,702,222
Investment securities – –
Payments to staff and sundry creditors (9,718,709,279) (7,319,760,944)
Other cash flow from operating activities (8,923,196) 186,231,884
Income taxes (962,244,415) (319,538,765)
Net cash flows from operating activities 16,730,936,527 22,610,913,319 

Investment activities 
Interest and dividends received on investment portfolio 122,214,164 126,013,585
Purchase/Sale of investment portfolio (5,349,794,999) (3,589,536,160)
Purchase/Sale of fixed assets (6,016,639,903) (3,523,420,580)
Cash flows from investment activities (11,244,220,738) (6,986,943,155)

Financing activities 
Shares issuance 
Loans issuance 5,598,790,000 2,710,680,013
Loans repayment – –
Special resources increase/decrease – –
Dividends paid – –
Net cash flows from financing activities 5,598,790,000 2,710,680,013

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents – (1,925,052,191)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year 11,085,505,789 18,334,650,177 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 57,351,337,937 40,941,739,951
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 68,436,843,726 57,351,337,937
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Notes 1 to 33 are integral part of those financial statements.

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the years ended 2010 and 2009
(Expressed in Congolese franc)

    2010 Movement  
 Balance on 01/01/2010 Increase Decrease Balance on 31/12/10
Subscribed capital 6,808,059,000 5,598,790,000 – 12,406,849,000 
Funds for share capital increase – – – –
Profit (Loss) for the period (1,477,409,371) (434,697,989) (1,477,409,371) (434,697,989)
Retained earnings  1,210,093,128 (1,477,409,371) (21,602,114) (245,714,129)
Revaluation surplus of fixed assets 1,241,338,335 738,871,157 – 1,980,209,492
Provisions for capital reconstitution 986,202,670 17,605,304 – 1,003,807,974
Equipment grants  162,951,422 – 106,231,808 56,719,614
Total shareholders’ equity 8,931,235,184 4,443,159,101  (1,392,779,677)  14,767,173,962 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 December 2010
(All amounts are expressed in Congolese Francs – CDF – 
unless otherwise stated)

1. Activites

PROCREDIT BANK CONGO s.a.r.l. is a private limited liability compa-
ny incorporated in the Democratic Republic of Congo, the creation 
of which was authorised by presidential decree No. 05/042 dated 
24 May 2005. 
It operates in accordance with the provisions of the Congolese 
Banking Law 72/004 dated 14 January 1972 relating to the protec-
tion of savings and the control of financial intermediates as amend-
ed by Law 003/2002 dated 2 February 2002 relating to the activity 
and control of loan establishment.
It is designed for performing all the banking activities authorised 
by the banking law, especially to very small, small and medium en-
terprises and private households. 
The Bank is governed by inter-ministerial decisions No. 039/CAB/
MIN/PLAN/2005 and No. 076/CAB/MIN/FIN/2005 dated 22 June 
2005 approving PROCREDIT BANK CONGO’s investment project and 
conferring specific customs and tax exemptions.

2. Accounting principles

The major accounting principles are as follows:

2.1 Financial statements presentation 

The financial statements have been prepared according to the ac-
counting principles issued by CPCC, the Congolese Accounting 
Standards Board, and adapted to comply with the Central Bank 
regulations. These principles are based on the historical cost con-
vention as amended by the legal revaluation of fixed assets carried 
out on a yearly basis.

2.2 Foreign currency translation 

During the year, transactions denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated into Congolese francs at the current official ex-
change rates. The resulting exchange differences are recorded in 
the income statement.
By the end of the year, monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currency are translated into the local currency at the ex-
change rate prevailing as at 31 December 2010. The resulting ex-
change position adjustment is recognised in the income statement 
of the year. 

2.3 Investment securities

Investment securities are debt securities that are acquired or de-
rived from another asset class, with the intention of holding them 
until maturity to obtain a regular income over a long period. 
On each balance sheet date, comparison shall be made between the 
cost of acquisition of investment securities with market value for 
listed securities and the probable market value for unlisted ones.
The unrealised losses from the difference between the book value 
(adjusted for any depreciation or occasions premiums or discounts) 
and the market value or the fair value of trading securities are not 
provided except as hereinafter:
•  There is, due to new circumstances, a high probability that the 

acquirer does not hold these securities to maturity; 
•  There are risks of default by the securities issuer.

2.4 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are initially stated at their acquisition cost. 
They are revaluated in accordance with Decree-Law No. 89/017 is-
sued on 18 February 1989, on the basis of the legal coefficients 
published every year by the Ministry of Finance. 
Increases in the accounting value related to revaluation are cred-
ited in the “revaluation surplus” account. According to the ministe-
rial order  n°017/CAB/MIN/FIN/98 dated 13 April 1998, the surplus 
obtained may be transferred to the bank capital. 
Since 31 December 2000, lands have been revaluated in compli-
ance with provisions of the amended article 5 of ministerial order 
n° 017/CAB/MIN/FIN/98 dated 13 April 1998. 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis in order to write 
down the carrying value of each asset or its revaluated amount to 
the residual value over their expected useful lives, on the basis of 
the ministerial order n° 017/CAB/MIN/FIN/98 dated 13 April 1998.

The Bank has set the following useful lives for its main fixed assets:
 
  Years
Buildings  6
Generators  10
Furniture and office equipment  5
Vehicles  5
Computers  5
Software licences  4
Goodwill  5

2.5 Allowances for impairment

a) Provisions for doubtful debts 

The provisioning of credit is covered by instruction 16 of the Central 
Bank of Congo on credit institutions. This statement provides the 
applicable provisioning rate as indicated below:

 Financial
  guarantees or Real Reputational
Types of credit  receivables collateral guarantee
Normal or healthy 1  1  3
Potential (extended)  1  5   7
Unpaid  1 15  20
Doubtful  1 35 50
Litigation 1 50 70
Irrecoverable 10 100 100

Overdrafts covered by collateral or not 

Overdraft/absence of transactions Provisioning rates 
3–6 months   30 
6–9 months   50 
9–12 months  80 
> 12 months  100 
 

b) Provision for share capital reconstitution

Instituted by Decree No. 04/049 dated 20 May 2004 supplementing 
Order No. 77-332 dated 30 November 1977 which established the 
rules for mandatory application of the Congolese chart of accounts, 
and by letter Gouv/14/No.03325 issued by the Central Bank of 
Congo on 30 December 2003, this provision is intended to maintain 
a constant amount of the Bank’s share capital in foreign currency.
According to Article 4 of the aforementioned decree, the amount 
of this provision is the difference between the equivalent in na-
tional currency, at the closing and opening exchange rates, and the 
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amount of share capital denominated in foreign currencies, after 
taking into account the revaluation surplus on fixed assets.

2.6 Tax regime 

By the Interministerial orders n°599/CAB/MIN/PLAN/2009 and 
n°019-10/CAB/MIN/FIN/2009 dated february 19th, 2010, the in-
vestment project presented by the company PROCREDIT BANK 
CONGO sarl was accepted and the bank could then benefit from the 
advantages of the unique general regime of the investment code. 
Article 4 of this decision grants the bank exemption from corporate 
income tax, among others, the exoneration of the profits achieved 
by this investment, work/professional tax on the incomes provided 
for in the title IV of the Decree-law n°69-009 dated February 10, 
1969, as modified to date. 
 
This exoneration is valid for the following tax statements: 

i) Economic region A (Kinshasa):
  (Hasson-Limete 16ème rue, Limete Place commercial, Man-

dela, Matadi-Kibala, Matete, RP-Ngaba, Boulevard branches): 
fiscal years 2011/incomes 2010, 2012/incomes 2011 and 2013/ 
incomes 2012;

ii) Economic region A (Kinshasa):
  (Pelou-UPN branch) fiscal years 2012/incomes 2011, 2013/in-

comes 2012 and 2014/incomes 2013;

iii) Economic region B (Lubumbashi and Bas-Congo):
  (Mbanza-Ngungu, Matadi and Lubumbashi 1 branches) fiscal 

years 2011/incomes 2010, 2012/incomes 2011, 2013/incomes 
2012 and 2014/incomes 2013;

ii) Economic region B (Lubumbashi and Bas-Congo):
  (Boma and Lubumbashi 2 branches) fiscal years 2012/incomes 

2011, 2013/incomes 2012, 2014/incomes 2013 and 2015/in-
comes 2014.

2.7 Exchange rates

Exchange rates on 31 December 2010 are as follows: 

 2010 2009
USD 919.69 903.56
EUR 1,215.84 1,293.27

3. Cash, deposit with central bank of congo and banks 

in CDF 2010 2009
Cash 9,906,061643 7,667,265,431
Banks 15,095,486,379 8,955,109,755
Deposits with 
Central Bank of Congo   8,139,127,617 4,228,937,979
 33,140,675,639 20,851,313,165

Cash is made up of:
Cash in local currency 198,069,216 151,377,256
Cash in foreign currencies 9,707,992,427 7,515,888,175
 9,906,061,643 7,667,265,431

3.1 
Cash in foreign currencies mainly includes cash amounting to USD 
9,893,157 and Euro 501,180, equivalent to FC 9,098,637,736 and 
FC 609,354,691, respectively.

3.2 Bank’s deposits in foreign currency: 

   Cash in
 Euro  USD  CDF
CITIBANK  283,913,862 133,799,794 –
ING 287,296,755 1,493,724,842 –
Deutsche Bank 1,473,210,373 3,523,638,665 –
Commerzbank 298,976,284 3,530,616,031 –
BNP Paribas 187,006,612 3,854,763,540 –
Others –        26,560,951 1,978,670
 2,530,403,886 12,563,103,823 1,978,670

3.3 Deposits with the Central Bank of Congo are as follows: 

in CDF 2010 2009
Liquid assets with 
Central Bank of Congo 250,436,057 158,271,220
Non-liquid assets with 
Central Bank of Congo 7,888,691,560 4,070,666,759
 8,139,127,617 4,228,937,979

Non-liquid assets correspond to the mandatory reserve held at the 
Central Bank of Congo.
 

4. Portfolio of public bonds

This component includes the Treasury Bill subscribed by Procredit 
Bank Congo from the Central Bank of Congo as follows:

Date Subscription  Maturity Rates Amount
 N°  % in CDF
12/15/2010 BTA0015761 28 days 19.10 7,000,000
12/29/2010 BTA0017619 28 days 18.16 230,000,000
Total    237,000,000

5. Loans and advances to other banks

This component comprises the bank’s securities acquired from its 
foreign financial intermediaries, which are held in Euro and USD in 
the equivalent of CDF 4,015,729,253 and CDF 31,043,438,834, re-
spectively, as follows:

 EUR USD
CITIBANK  – 6,916,068,800
ING 1,824,984,971 4,598,955,820
DZ Bank 2,190,744,282 5,519,565,520
Commerzbank – 2,851,409,433
BOM – 2,863,510,162
BNP Paribas – 3,679,411,987
Bank ESSEN BISTUM –   4,614,517,112
 4,015,729,253 31,043,438,834
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6. Portfolio securities  

This component is detailed as follows: 

in CDF 2010 2009
Investment securities/
securities 15,954,413,324 10,604,618,325
Participation securities/
securities   2,100,654,000   2,100,654,000
  18,055,067,324 12,705,272,325

The investment securities represent bonds with fixed and variable 
rates. They include securities acquired from OECD Financial inter-
mediaries, initially valuing USD 17,347,599. On December 31st, 
2010, the bond portfolio is detailed as follows:   

Participations represent the shares acquired by the bank to con-
trol the companies Matadi Vangu sprl and Des Aviateurs sprl. 
These securities were acquired in 2008 for USD 240,000 and USD 
3,000,000, respectively. Presently, these two companies occupy 
the bank’s premises in Kinshasa and Matadi.  

7. Loans and advances to customers

This component is as follows:

in CDF 2010 2009
Gross credit 36,106,171,059 30,672,520,352
Provisions for bad debts (1,224,639,661)   (818,400,753)
 34,881,531,398 29,854,119,599

8. Other assets

This component is as follows:

in CDF  2010 2009
Accrued interest on 
loans to customers   474,563,673  591,308,548
Interest accrued on 
Financial Securities   123,563,506  144,094,606
Repayable funds 
(guaranteed leasehold) 8.1  290,382,865  249,696,945
Internal accounts  8.2  92,843,782 198,995,521
Checks   12,976,789     27,930,015
Employee loans   –  262,032
Other accounts  49,203 –
     1,194,379,818 1,212,287,667

8.1
Repayable funds are guarantees that the bank has paid to different 
landlords under the existing rent agreements.

8.2 Internal accounts consist of the following:

Description   Amount
in CDF
Checks in compensation  146,779,213
Own checks (bank/warranty)  (71,533,099)
Temporary accounts  160,700,601
Checks deposited         40,510,159
Profit for the year   15,947,342
Receivable payment from other institutions 
(Visa, Mastercard)      439,566
  292,843,782

Transactions recorded in the temporary accounts represent ad-
vances paid to suppliers for goods and services.
 

Securities Code ISIN Nominal Value Acquisition Value 
  USD USD
DENMARK KINGDOM XS0408298494 1,000,000 1,001,700
AFRICAN DEV BANK US008281AV97 1,000,000 992,000
JUL 14 TIPS US912828CP39 1,000,000 1,031,250
ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK US045167BW21 1,000,000 997,000
BK OF ENGLAND EURO NOTE XS0417737821 1,000,000 1,015,000
INTER-AMERIC.DEV.BK. US45818WAE66 1,000,000 1,017,798
DANSKE BANK AS MTN XS0436664105 1,000,000 1,004,051
NETWORK RAIL INFRASTR.  XS0408349743 1,000,000 1,020,100
KFW ANL.V.10 US500769DN18 1,000,000 1,030,600
KFW ANL.V.08 US500769CW26 2,000,000 2,154,000
NORDIC INVESTMENT BK 10 US65562QAN51 2,000,000 2,031,000
EIB NT.10 US298785FE18 2,000,000 2,040,400
NORDIC INVESTMENT BNK XS0387420606 1,000,000 1,013,000
EIB 03/15/13 US298785EK86  1,000,000 999,700
  15,000,000 17,347,599
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9. Prepaid expenses and other  

in CDF  2010 2009
Prepaid expenses  74,196,179 73,067,163
Other receivable payments 9.1 114,806,737 421,599,840
Other receivable payments 
from the Holding 9.2 130,435,315 –
Receivable payments from 
non-banking counterparties 9.3 60,008,569 101,843,730
Other assets – 
accrued income 9.4 264,150,469 17,508,281
Other assets – 
stocks not consumed  9.5   37,430,489 – 
  681,027,758 614,019,014

9.1
Other receivable payments include mainly account expenses 
amounting to CDF 77,534,567 not yet received by the bank.

9.2
This relates to a grant received from BIO which is intended to fund 
the training of employees.

9.3
Receivable payments from non-banking counterparties include main-
ly receivables from transactions concluded with Visa International 
for CDF 42,116,109 and MasterCard CDF 11,776,538. 

9.4 
Other receivable income consists mainly of tax credits amounting to 
CDF 246,329,636 resulting from installment payments of CDF 541 
million made in 2010.

9.5
This relates to materials and supplies purchased but not consumed 
on 31 December 2010.

10. Intangible assets 
  
As at 31 December 2010, this item is detailed as follows:

The goodwill booked results from the merger with two local com-
panies (SPRL du Livre and SPRL du Boulevard 30 Juin), which were 
acquired by the Bank in 2010. This goodwill is the difference be-
tween the acquisition cost of these entities and net book values at 
the date of the merger.
Management has decided to depreciate the difference over a period 
of 5 years beginning on the date of merger.

11. Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2010, this caption is detailed as follows:

in CDF  Computer Licences Goodwill Total
Gross values 
1st January 2010 717,501,825 – 717,501,825
Acquisitions 84,098,337 3,224,143,089 3,308,241,426
Revaluations   97,471,774      97,471,774    194,943,549
On 31 December 2010  899,071,937 3,321,614,863 4,220,686,800
 
Depreciation
1st January 2010 360,865,753 – 360,865,753
Depreciation 103,347,646 316,344,273 419,691,919
Revaluations   96,563,643 15,817,214 112,380,857
On 31 December, 2010 560,777,042 332,161,486 892,938,528
 
Net values 
On 31 December 2010 338,294,895 2,989,453,377 3,327,748,271
On 31 December 2009 356,636,072 – 356,636,072

 Arrangements Vehicles Furniture Computer  Buildings Land Current Total
   and other equipment   assets
in CDF   equipment      
Gross values
1st Jan 2010  2,966,478,208 583,011,713 2,495,863,985 1,365,031,522 – – 919,268,528 8,329,653,956
Acquisitions 1,104,645,870 95,187,789 420,459,997 146,054,467 314,029,333 1,760,000 565,560,659 2,647,698,115
Revaluation   494,731,941 66,825,828   313,598,869 225,177,764   15,701,467 88,000 – 1,116,123,869
On 31 Dec 2010 4,565,856,020 745,025,331 3,229,922,850 1,736,263,752 329,730,800 1,848,000 1,484,829,187 12,093,475,940
        
Depreciation
1st Jan 2010 867,378,986 215,592,082 670,479,562 688,778,569 – – – 2,442,229,199
Depreciation 266,656,611 74,382,369 264,004,097 165,933,020 200,722,069 – – 971,698,167
Revaluations    201,114,606 55,660,639 211,917,157 (9,269,535) 392,537 – – 459,815,404
On 31 Dec 2010 1,335,150,203 345,635,090 1,146,400,816 845,442,054 201,114,606 – – 3,873,742,769
        
Net values
On 31 Dec 2010 3,230,705,816 399,390,241 2,083,522,034 890,821,699 128,616,194 1,848,000 1,484,829,187 8,219,733,170
On 31 Dec 2009 2,099,099,222 367,419,631 1,825,384,423 676,252,953 – – 919,268,528 5,887,424,757
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12. Loro correspondents and central bank accounts 

This item includes check payables amounting to CDF 19,375,036 
and the account payable to Visa International and MasterCard 
amounting to CDF 8,309,721.

13.  Liabilities to customers 

in CDF 2010 2009
Individual current 
accounts 36,807,255,204 34,138,385,442
Business current 
account 18,976,386,376 15,552,199,802
Individual savings 
accounts 53,452,481,110 39,480,088,466
Business savings 
accounts 1,122,137,639 2,095,212,255
Individual term 
deposits 5,390,733,165 2,648,217,778
Business term 
deposits 594,495,472 2,134,395,317
 116,343,488,966 96,048,499,060
Interest accrued 
on deposits 82,582,761 59,546,502
 116,426,071,727 96,108,045,562

14. Other liabilities 

in CDF  2010 2009
Employees payable – INPP  2,960,370 2,234,362
Security contributions 
payable INSS  30,015,503 19,016,249
Accruals 14.1 479,434,842 278,503,641
Accruals ProCredit 
network 14.2 69,716,911 –
Provision for royalties/
exchange of BCC 
supervision 14.3 533,081,076 –
Provision for 
untaken leave  14.4 75,312,320 119,378,907
Other amounts payable 14.5 324,203,828 225,269,228
Deferred income  231,118,446 184,630,352
Other liabilities 14.6 201,001,230 618,957,629
  1,946,844,526 1,447,990,368

14.1
These are provisions made for the bank’s current expenses (tele-
communication, internet connection with Vodacom, water and elec-
tricity consumption) not billed by providers as at 31 December 2010.

14.2
This relates to the provisions made to cover the costs of technical 
assistance received from ProCredit network and services received 
from Quipu but not invoiced at the end of the year.

14.3
This relates to the provision made to cover the costs of the Central 
Bank of Congo supervision. It corresponds to 0.5% of the average 
monthly deposits for the period.

14.4
The provision for untaken leave is calculated on the basis of aver-
age annual earnings.

14.5
The other amounts payable representing the guarantees received 
by the bank on different licences for import and export applied for 
by the public.

14.6
Other liabilities comprise mainly amounts of sales tax, tax on sala-
ries (IPR and IERE) and the sales tax on external services.

15. Accruals

in CDF  2010 2009
Transfers payable 15.1 401,130,784 142,542,352
Internal accounts 15.2 388,543,867 284,851,436
  789,674,651 427,393,788

15.1
Transfers payable are transfers from third parties not yet made 
available to beneficiaries.

15.2
The internal accounts are amounts received from the correspond-
ents of the Bank to third parties or transfers to third parties not yet 
confirmed by the correspondents.

16. Provision for risks, expenses and losses 

This is a provision for health credit, constituted under Instruction 
No. 16 of the Central Bank of Congo, as described in note 2.4 which 
accompanies the financial statements.

17. Subscribed capital 

The capital has been increased from CDF 6,808,059,000 to CDF 
12,406,849,000 following the decision of the Extraordinary 
 General Meeting of March 26, 2010. This increase was achieved 
by a cash injection amounting to USD 6,000,000 equivalent to CDF 
5,598,790,000 and has been subjected to the issuance of 6,000 
new shares fully subscribed and paid up.
The number of shares of the bank that has moved from 1,000,000 
to 1,600,000 is divided as per the shareholders as follows:

 Number of shares %
ProCredit Holding 1,047,991 65
KfW 192,000 12
IFC 144,000 9
DOEN 120,000 8
BIO 96,000 6
Sandrine Massiani 3 –
Oliver Meisenberg 3 –
Claus-Peter Zeitinger 3 –
Total 1,600,000 100
 

These are ordinary, indivisible and numbered shares.
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18. Grants equipment

Grants equipment are donations received from the European Union 
to cover ATM acquisition cost.

 
19. Income from treasury and interbank transactions 

The Income on Cash and interbank transactions amounting to CDF 
124 862 771 refers to interest earned on investments made with 
correspondent banks.
 

20. Charges from treasury and interbank transactions 

in CDF 2010 2009
Interest expense – other banks 184,737,007 32,476,476
NOSTRO accounts commissions 241,483,017 187,330,291
Other commissions 
on transactions 40,740,914 247,543,458
Other Commissions    938,947,536 –
 1,405,908,474 467,350,225

Other commissions include primarily the costs relating to the con-
trol by the Central Bank of Congo amounting to CDF 533,081,076.

21. Incomes on transactions with customers 

in CDF 2010 2009
Interest income on loans 11,024,162,768 8,426,206,941
Interest income 
on overdrafts 93,964,754 2,193,319
Penalties on loans 
in arrears 612,611,832 163,984,338
Disbursement of
commissions 359,036,954 127,865,750
Prepayment penalties 193,812,225 68,764,243
Commissions on 
local transfers 266,452,167 189,025,970
Commissions on 
international transfers 882,266,381 828,179,568
 13,432,307,081 9,806,220,129

22. Expenses on transactions with customers 

in CDF 2010 2009
Interest and expenses 
on savings accounts 508,169,185 597,357,338
Interest and expenses 
on deposits 854,895,614 197,336,370
 1,363,064,799 794,693,708
 

23. Other operating incomes

in CDF 2010 2009
Interest income – securities 214,977,365 277,193,593
Interest income – securities 7,808,465 –
Interest income – BTR 212,123,304 46,714,883
Account maintenance fee 830,590,055 824,985,767
Commission on 
cash transactions 542,335,808 80,810,725
Commissions on guarantees 21,707,724 11,399,017
Commissions on 
credit cards: Master Card 163,966,272 –
Fees on debit cards: 
Master Card 18,763,784 –
Fees on debit cards: 
Visa Card 315,987,417 326,409,613
Commissions on 
other debit cards 322,816,266 264,554,634
Other commissions 
on customers 20,497,234 19,666,613
Other commissions 1,381,663,070 825,987,684
Net Gain (Loss) on exchange    120,827,310 (1,688,488,918)
 4,174,064,074 989,233,611

24. Other operating expenses 

in CDF 2010 2009
Commissions receivable – 
Cash transaction 46,174 3,138
Expenses related to 
debit cards/credit 742,963,833 501,771,201
Other commissions on 
MasterCard 21,356,043 –
Net Loss (Profit) on 
securities revaluation     241,815,049 (55,500,633)
 1,006,181,099 446,273,706

25. Grant

Operating grants represent the grant received from European Un-
ion for the acquisition of ATM’s. 
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26. General operating expenses 

in CDF 2010 2009
Rentals 852,261,126 513,404,239
Communication costs 749,339,047 596,332,426
Transport costs 344,369,816 510,874,178
Air transport costs 269,258,093 –
Office furniture 218,007,640 196,138,833
Other consumables 143,011,143 119,415,162
Computer supplies and 
small equipment 195,336,444 191,499,534
IT maintenance costs 388,844,277 348,117,192
Security and guarding costs 622,637,745 357,262,343
Security fees for guide services 14,858,873 –
Marketing fees, advertising 
and Public Relations 270,373,198 211,242,088
Construction and 
renovation costs 27,392,526 27,139,444
Repair and maintenance 
expenses 267,481,991 169,640,629
Insurance premiums 82,766,901 49,144,918
Electricity and water charges 298,836,727 174,788,273
IPC service supplies – 5,488,140
Other expense fees 33,995,500 56,168,733
Legal and audit fees 206,816,059 181 ,880,584
PCH expenses 606,400,576 207,809,554
Other expenses    190,357,473 165,383
  5,782,345,155 3,916,511,653

The air transport component was created in 2010 to reinforce the 
analysis of overhead costs in 2010. These charges were made 
among the transport fees. This also relates to the component of 
costs for guide services that was created in 2010.

27. Staff costs 

in CDF 2010 2009
Salaries 3,998,368,595 2,908,629,619
Other benefits 251,000,898 216,812,463
Social security 
charges and pension 267,112,998 184,693,192
Training    191,269,496    405,273,082
 4,707,751,987 3,715,408,356

 

28. Taxes 

in CDF 2010 2009
Sales tax on external services 314,735,042 289,998,188
Other   98,653,876 103,324,305
 413,388,918 393,322,493

29. Depreciation

in CDF 2010 2009
Depreciation of 
tangible fixed assets 608,065,216 390,846,329
Depreciation of 
intangible fixed assets   783,517,440 234,781,047
 1,391,582,656 625,627,376

30.  Allowance for impairment, losses on loans and advances and 
reversals of provisions

in CDF  2010 2009
Losses on bad debts 30.1 259,757,364 6,093,760
Provision for share 
capital reconstitution  – 271,639,804
Provision for 
normal credits  1,277,331,361 401,852,240
Provision for non 
performing credits 30.2 2,207,090,641 880,983,186
Litigation  37,380,410 28,532,460
Other  142,028,022 42,697,663
  3,923,587,798 1,631,799,113

Reversal of provisions 
not linked to credit 
transactions 30.3 165,255,214 25,395,834
Reversal of provisions
for doubtful credit 30.4 1,967,010,475 53,515,185
  2,132,265,688 78,911,018
  
  (1,791,322,109) (1,552,888,094)

30.1
Losses on bad debts consist of written off loan losses not covered 
by provisions.

30.2
This is a provision for healthy credits under Instruction No. 16 of the 
Central Bank of Congo, as described in note 2.4 which accompanies 
the financial statements.

30.3
Reversals on provisions not related to credit transactions primarily 
include the reversal of ProCredit Bank staff’s unused leave for the 
months of November and December 2010. 

30.4
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts primarily include re-
coveries on sound, doubtful, litigation and refinanced loans as well 
as repayments of written off loans.
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31. Exceptional incomes and expenses

in CDF 2010 2009
Cash surplus 21,289,415 17,907,380
Non operating income   5,829,371      120,785
Total exceptional income 27,118,786 18,028,165

Losses on cash transactions (82,460,182) (33,844,462)
Other penalties on taxes (1,293,828) (40,115,802)
Non operating expenses (37,784,536) (24,373,088)
Total exceptional expenses (121,538,546) (98,333,352)

 (94,419,760) (80,305,188) 

32. Corporate tax

At the end of the fiscal year 2010, the provision for the Corporate 
Tax constituted by the bank amounted to CDF 294,948,332 corre-
sponding to 40% of profit before tax, after deduction and reinstate-
ment of certain expenses and incomes.

33. Off-balance sheet 

in CDF 2010 2009
Bank guarantees 1,555,808,159 506,849,299
Interest on doubtful accounts 199,864,695 –
Total Off-balance sheet 1,755,672,854 506,849,299
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

In USD 2010 2009
Interest income  14,095,248 11,380,975
Interest expenses  1,701,005 1,018,617
Net interest income 12,394,243 10,362,358

Allowance for impairment losses loans and advances 2,571,654 1,087,992
Net interest income after allowance 9,822,589 9,274,366
  
Fee and commission income  5,232,236 4,152,512
Fee and commission expenses  2,226,050 1,194,054
Net income fees and commission 3,006,186 2,958,458
  
Trading result  332,242 –841,286
Gain and losses from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 426,909 409,695
Net other operating income 189,552 999,373
Operating income 13,777,478 12,800,605
  
Personnel expenses  4,953,430 4,148,193
Other administrative expenses 8,312,758 6,894,406
Operating expenses 13,266,189 11,042,599
  
Operating result before taxes 511,289 1,758,006
Income tax expenses –338,367 1,432,347
Profit for the year 849,657 325,659

Change in revaluation reserve from available-for-sale financial assets – –
Change in deferred tax on revaluation reserve from available-for-sale assets – –
Total other recognised income and expense 849,657 325,659

Financial Statements*
For the year ended 31 December 2010.
Prepared in accordance with IFRS.

*  The following statements, which were prepared in accordance with IFRS, are not part of the bank’s officially approved financial  statements. 
They are provided for information purposes only.
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Statement of Financial Position

In USD 2010 2009
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 19,881,815,42 13,190,712
Loans and advances to banks  54,531,924,83 50,285,433
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7,577,948,22 11,895,959
Financial assets available-for-sale 10,319,470 –
Loans and advances to customers 39,825,025,45 34,699,973
Allowance for impairment loans and advances –2,458,785,29 –1,283,337
Intangible assets 328,853,75 383,943
Property, plant and equipment 14,616,407,45 9,807,586
Deferred tax assets 887,059,73 150,389
Current Tax assets 282,387 –
Other assets 1,220,157,93 950,781
Total assets 147,012,264 120,081,440

Liabilities
Liabilities to banks 1,558,087 354,155
Liabilities to customers 125,861,50 106,769,9343
Other liabilities 1,144,078 789,406
Provisions 729,008 165,121
Current tax liabilities 475 1,109,734
Total liabilities 129,293,151 109,188,349
  
Equity  
Subscribed capital 16,000,000 10,000,000
Retained earnings 1,742,747 893,091
Shareholder equity 17,719,113 10,893,091
Total equity 17,719,113 10,893,091
  
Total equity and liabilities 147,012,264 120,081,440
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Contact Addresses

Head Office

ProCredit Bank Congo SARL
Avenue des Aviateurs 4b
Kinshasa/Gombe
Tel.: +243 81 830 25 00 
Fax: +49 69 255 770 42
info@procreditbank.cd
www.procreditbank.cd

Branches in Kinshasa

Gombe I
Avenue des Aviateurs, 4b
Kinshasa/Gombe
Tel.: +243 81 830 25 14/15/16

Gombe II
Avenue de la Paix, 20/C
Kinshasa/Gombe
Tel.: +243 81 830 26 28/29

Gombe III
Boulevard du 30 Juin 
Kinshasa/Gombe
Tel.: +243 81 830 26 73

Gombe Business Center
Avenue de la Paix, 20/C
Kinshasa/Gombe
Tel.: +243 830 26 30/34 

Kintambo 
Avenue de la Montagne, 05 
Kinshasa/Kintambo
Tel.: +243 81 830 25 42/56

Limete
Avenue Gardénias, 6e Rue
Kinshasa/Limete
Tel.: +243 81 830 25 75/77

Limete 16ème 
16e Rue Industrielle, 29
Kinshasa/Limete
Tel.: +243 81 830 86 95/87 00

Ma Campagne
Place Commerciale, 18
Kinshasa/Ngaliema
Tel.: +243 81 830 26 23/24 

Matadi Kibala 
Route de Matadi N°2 
Kinshasa/Mont-Ngafula
Tel.: + 243 81 830 27 38/39

Matete
Quartier Tomba, 6A bis
Kinshasa/Matete
Tel.: +243 81 830 86 96/97

N’djili 
Avenue Maman Mobutu, Q1
Kinshasa/Ndjili
Tel.: +243 81 830 25 31/26 72

Rond-point Ngaba 
Avenue de la Foire N°19/346 A
Kinshasa/Lemba
Tel.: + 243 81 830 26 91/92

Victoire 
Avenue Victoire, 1 Rond-point Victoire 
Kinshasa/Kalamu
Tel.: +243 81 830 25 57/59

UPN
Route de Matadi
Kinshasa/Ngaliema
Tel.: +243 81 830 86 92/93
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Branches in Bas-Congo

Matadi 
Junction between Avenue Mpolo and 
Avenue Kisangani, 98
Matadi
Tel.: + 243 81 830 27 12/13
Fax: + 359 2 817 48 84

Mbanza Ngungu
Avenue Mobutu, 1 bis
Mbanza Ngungu
Tel.: +243 81 830 87 10/12
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